
          CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2024 

HELD REMOTELY & IN PERSON AT CITY HALL 
124 S. LEFEVRE ST.  

• Sign up to provide Public Comment at the meeting via calling in.
• Submit Written Public Comment Before 4 pm on (November 19, 2024) - *SEE NOTE*

Please note: To better serve our community, we are now offering Live Streaming of our Council Meetings 
on our YouTube channel (link is provided below). This will enable citizens who wish to just view the 
meeting and not participate (provide comments) to do so in the comfort of their homes. Those that wish 
to provide input during the citizen comment periods, may join the meeting as usual via the Zoom link.  

• Join the Zoom Meeting –
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83820003694?pwd=L5Gllkxe0P53clYpjOm1LUdFWqDlA6.1

Meeting ID: 838 2000 3694
Passcode: 446645
One tap mobile
+12532050468,,83820003694#,,,,*446645# US
+12532158782,,83820003694#,,,,*446645# US (Tacoma)

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcHd0o7SW 

• Watch the Live Stream on YouTube -
http://www.youtube.com/@CityofMedicalLake

WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENTS 
If you wish to provide written public comments for the council meeting, please email your 
comments to sweathers@medical-lake.org by 4:00 p.m. the day of the council meeting and include 
all the following information with your comments: 
1. The Meeting Date
2. Your First and Last Name
3. If you are a Medical Lake resident
4. The Agenda Item(s) which you are speaking about
*Note – If providing written comments, the comments received will be acknowledged during the
public meeting, but not read. All written comments received by 4:00 p.m. will be provided to the
mayor and city council members in advance of the meeting.

Questions or Need Assistance? Please contact City Hall at 509-565-5000 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81427343136?pwd=UC85WkdKVitlc2Z2MkI3bFp0dUMxQT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83820003694?pwd=L5Gllkxe0P53clYpjOm1LUdFWqDlA6.1
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcHd0o7SW
http://www.youtube.com/@CityofMedicalLake


NOVEMBER 19, 2024 - REGULAR SESSION – 6:30 PM 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL

2. AGENDA APPROVAL

3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
A. Spokane Transit Authority Connect 2035 Update

5. REPORTS
A. Public Safety
B. Committee Reports
C. Council Comments
D. Mayor
E. City Administrator & City Staff

i. Sonny Weathers, City Administrator
ii. Koss Ronholt, Finance Director - 2024 Q3 Budget Report

iii. Dave Yuhas, Code Enforcement Officer – 2024 Q3 Code Enforcement Report

6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION
A. Preliminary Budget Review

7. ACTION ITEMS
A. Consent Agenda

i. Approve November 5, 2024, minutes.
ii. Approve November 19, 2024, Claim Warrants numbered 51915 through 51961 in the

amount of $330,220.94, Payroll Claim Warrants numbered 51907 through 51914 and Payroll
Payable Warrants numbered 30180 through 30187 in the amount of $174,669.42.

B. Re*Imagine Medical Lake Winter Festival Fireworks Display Permit

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS - none

9. RESOLUTIONS
A. 24-718 Comcast Infrastructure to Medical Lake Library
B. 24-720 Personnel Policy Amendment for Holiday Office Closure

10. ORDINANCES
A. Second Read Ordinance 1130 MLMC Text Amendments for Land Use Reviews
B. Second Read Ordinance 1131 2025 Property Tax Levy Amount
C. First Read Ordinance 1119 Special Events

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION – None.

12. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES – None.

13. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS

14. INTERESTED CITIZENS

15. CONCLUSION

2



To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Koss Ronholt, Finance Director 

TOPIC: 2025 PRELIMINARY BUDGET DISCUSSION 

Requested Action: 
Discuss the preliminary budget, provided for the November 5th, 2024, regular council meeting. 

Key Points: 
This workshop acts as an additional opportunity for questions and discussion around the presented 
preliminary budget, prior to the final budget. 

Background Discussion: 
The preliminary budget is an extensive and detailed document, so it has been requested to be brought 
forward again as a workshop discussion to allow Council additional opportunity to review and discuss 
prior to proposing the final budget.  

Public Involvement: 
Council held a public hearing on the preliminary budget during the November 5th, 2024, regular council 
meeting. Written comment was submitted by a citizen of Medical Lake, otherwise no public comment 
was made. 

Next Steps:  
The final budget and associated ordinance first read will be presented in the agenda for the December 3, 
2024, regular council meeting, during which a public hearing will be held. The budget ordinance will 
then be presented against during the December 17, 2024, regular council meeting for a second reading. 

City of Medical Lake 
124 S. Lefevre St. 

P.O. Box 369 
Medical Lake, WA 99022-0369 

10/15/2024 City Council Meeting 

3



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
 City Council Regular Meeting & Public Hearings 

6:30 PM Council Chambers 
November 5, 2024  MINUTES 124 S. Lefevre Street 

NOTE:  This is not a verbatim transcript. Minutes contain only a summary of the discussion. A recording of the meeting 
is on file and available from City Hall.  

COUNCIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL PRESENT   

   Councilmembers             Administration/Staff 
Chad Pritchard   Terri Cooper, Mayor  
Keli Shaffer    Sonny Weathers, City Administrator 

   Lance Speirs (via Zoom)  Scott Duncan, Public Works Director 
   Don Kennedy   Koss Ronholt, Finance Director         
  Ted Olson           Elisa Rodriguez, City Planner 

Tony Harbolt           Steve Cooper, WWTP Director 
  Glen Horton, Parks & Recreation Director 
  Roxanne Wright, Admin. Assistant 

REGULAR SESSION – 6:30 PM 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL
A. Mayor Cooper called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm, led the Pledge of Allegiance, and conducted

roll call.
i. Councilmember Speirs was present on Zoom. Councilmember Maxwell requested absence.

Motion to approve absence made by Councilmember Kennedy, seconded by
Councilmember Shaffer, carried 6-0. All other members were present in person.

2. AGENDA APPROVAL
A. Move Section 10B First Read Ordinance 1130 MLMC Text Amendments for Land Use Reviews to

Section 8B(v) Public Hearing MLMC Text Amendment regarding Land Use Reviews.
i. Motion to approve change made by Councilmember Harbolt, seconded by Councilmember

Olson, carried 6-0.
ii. Motion to approve agenda as amended made by Councilmember Shaffer, seconded by

Councilmember Olson, carried 6-0.

3. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS
A. Carl Munson, resident of Medical Lake and Planning Commissioner – shared an update on what the

Planning Commission is working on, specifically about a Sister Cities Program.

B. Elijah Thiessen, resident of Medical Lake – spoke about perceptions of “Generation Z” and
encouraged Council to not take negative online comments seriously. Thanked the Council for their
work.

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS - none

5. REPORTS
A. Committee Reports

4



i. Finance – Councilmember Shaffer reported that they reviewed Claim Warrants and that all
looked good.

ii. Parks and Recreation – Glen Horton, Parks and Recreation Director updated on Linger at the
Lake sponsorship packets being completed and sent out. Kitchen remodel RFP will be
published on Thursday, November 7th. New park benches are being installed. Recreation
programs are being expanded now with plans for more in 2025. Rent.fun reported over
$4,000 in revenue from this summer. Shared that he went through training and is now a
certified playground safety inspector.

B. Council Comments
i. Councilmember Pritchard – none.

ii. Councilmember Shaffer – none.
iii. Councilmember Speirs – STA board of directors finalizing Connect 2035 plan. Draft will be

available November 6th on the STA website.
iv. Councilmember Kennedy – was an observer at signature verification stations for an election

office.
v. Councilmember Olson – none.

vi. Councilmember Harbolt – none.

C. Mayor Cooper – spoke on the lack of medical facilities in town now that MultiCare left. Had a
meeting with MultiCare’s regional representative to discuss getting some services back for the city.
Attended the ribbon cutting today for Silver Linings Auto Repair, a new business in town.
Information will be posted on our website and Facebook. Gordon Thomas Honeywell provided a
legislative report which was given to Council. Presented with an award from Spokane Regional
Historical Preservation for work done during the Gray Road fire.

D. City Administrator & City Staff
i. Sonny Weathers, City Administrator – Fall Festival put on by Re*Imagine Medical Lake was a

success with a large turnout. The West Plains Water Coalition meeting on October 28th was
well attended and very informative. Kitchen remodel and WWTP RFPs will be posted on
November 7th. Five responsive bids have been received for the ADA Lefevre Street Upgrade
project. Will bring forward a recommendation to Council soon.  City Hall will be closed on
November 11th for Veterans Day.

ii. Scott Duncan, Public Works Director – updated on projects. Liberty Concrete burying
conduit in preparation for Complete Streets project in the spring. Comcast laying fiber in Fox
Hollow then Fox Ridge. Any holes made or damage done will be corrected by the
responsible parties.

6. WORKSHOPS - none

7. ACTION ITEMS
A. Consent Agenda

i. Approve October 15, 2024, and October 16, 2024, Budget Retreat minutes.
1. Motion to approve October 15th minutes made by Councilmember Kennedy,

seconded by Councilmember Olson, carried 6-0. Motion to approve October 16th

minutes made by Councilmember Kennedy, seconded by Councilmember Shaffer,
carried 6-0.

ii. Approve November 5, 2024, Claim Warrants numbered 51847 through 51905 in the amount
of $176,257.77. 

1. Motion to approve made by Councilmember Shaffer, seconded by Councilmember
Kennedy, carried 6-0. 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5



A. 2025 Preliminary Budget
i. Mayor Cooper opened the hearing at 7:02 pm.

ii. Koss Ronholt, Finance Director – Highlighted priorities and how the budget process works.
First read of the Final Budget will be on December 3rd.  Mayor Cooper wants to add
additional Preliminary Budget discussion to the agenda for November 19th to give Council
more time to review and bring forth any suggested amendments. Discussion held regarding
six-year water plan, departmental increases, improvements to City Hall, and FTEs for new
and existing jobs. Discussed the city’s emergency response fund and ARPA funds. A
workshop will be held at the November 19th meeting to discuss distribution of remaining
ARPA funds.

iii. Public Comment - Mayor Cooper acknowledged receipt of an e-mail from a citizen that
contained public hearing commentary as well as comments regarding the November 5th

Council Meeting. The full comments are part of the official record on file at City Hall and can be
requested in person or by sending an e-mail to records@medical-lake.org . There were no
additional public comments.

iv. Mayor Cooper closed the hearing at 7:27 pm.

B. MLMC Text Amendment regarding Land Use Reviews
i. Mayor Cooper opened the hearing at 7:27 pm.

ii. Elisa Rodriguez, City Planner gave a presentation to review. See attached.
iii. Public Comment – Mayor Cooper again acknowledged the receipt of an e-mail with

comments as referenced above. There were no additional public comments.
iv. Mayor Cooper closed the hearing at 7:39 pm.
v. First Read Ordinance 1130 MLMC Text Amendments for Land Use Reviews

1. Legal counsel read the Ordinance onto the record.
2. Councilmember Kennedy noted an error in the eleventh “Whereas” November 15,

2024, should be November 5, 2024. Switch the eleventh and twelfth “Whereas” to
keep in chronological order.

3. Motion to approve first read as amended made by Councilmember Shaffer,
seconded by Councilmember Harbolt, carried 6-0.

9. RESOLUTIONS
A. 24-714 2025 Utility Fees

i. Mr. Ronholt reviewed and discussion was held.
ii. Motion to approve made by Councilmember Pritchard, seconded by Councilmember Olson,

carried 6-0.

B. 24-716 2025 Administrative Fees
i. Mr. Ronholt reviewed the only two changes. Discussion held. Mayor Cooper would like a

notation added under Section 1. Title 2 that states that court fees are set by Cheney City
Council. She would also like to include their website.  Motion to approve amendment made
by Councilmember Shaffer, seconded by Councilmember Kennedy, carried 6-0.

ii. Motion to approve Resolution as amended made by Councilmember Kennedy, seconded by
Councilmember Shaffer, carried 6-0.

C. 24-717 Diesel Tank Equipment Lease
i. Mr. Duncan reviewed and discussion was held regarding safety and security measures.

ii. Motion to approve made by Councilmember Kennedy, seconded by Councilmember Olson,
carried 6-0.

10. ORDINANCES

6

mailto:records@medical-lake.org


A. Second Read Ordinance 1129 Park Hours
i. Legal counsel read onto the record.

ii. Correction to the spelling of Washington in the top title.
1. Motion to approve as amended made by Councilmember Shaffer, seconded by

Councilmember Kennedy, carried 4-2 with Councilmembers Pritchard and Speirs
voting nay.

B. First Read Ordinance 1131 2025 Property Tax Levy Amount
i. Legal counsel read onto the record.

ii. Motion to approve made by Councilmember Shaffer, seconded by Councilmember Kennedy,
Councilmember Speirs noted a correction needed in the first “Whereas”; add the word Lake
after Medical. Motion to approve the correction made by Councilmember Kennedy,
seconded by Councilmember Shaffer, carried 6-0. Motion to approve as amended made by
Councilmember Kennedy, seconded by Councilmember Harbolt, discussion, carried 4-2 with
Councilmembers Pritchard and Speirs voting nay.

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION - none

12. EMERGENCY ORDINANCES - none

13. UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS - none

14. INTERESTED CITIZENS: AUDIENCE REQUESTS AND COMMENTS
A. Mayor Cooper again acknowledged public comment received via e-mail from a citizen regarding the

November 5, 2024, Council meeting.  The full comments are part of the official record on file at City Hall
and can be requested in person or by sending an e-mail to records@medical-lake.org .

15. CONCLUSION
A. Motion to conclude at 8:06 pm made by Councilmember Pritchard, seconded by Councilmember

Kennedy, carried 6-0.

  Terri Cooper, Mayor      Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 

____________________ 
Date 

7

mailto:records@medical-lake.org


Land Use Review Process
Amendments Required by SB 5290

Senate Bill 5290

Current January 1, 2025

Timeline for the final decision of a Land Use Review

All Reviews = 120 Days

Public Hearing = 170 Days

Notice, but no Hearing = 100 Days

No public notice = 65 Days

1

2

Attachment to 11/5/24 CC Minutes

8



Timelines → Review Types

TimelinesReview Types

Type I Review

Public Hearing = 170 Days

Notice, but no Hearing = 100 Days

No public notice = 65 Days

Type II Review

Type III Review

Type IV Review Legislative Review = No Timeline

Quasi-
Judicial

Administrative

Legislative

Review Types
Decision BodyPublic HearingApplication

Planning Officialnone

Lot Merge
Manufactured Home 

Community
Front Yard Fence Exception

Short Plat
Binding Site Plan

Lot Line Adjustment
Lot Segregation

Type I Review

Planning OfficialnoneHome Occupation (<25% of floor area)Type II Review

City Council
Planning 

Commission

Long Plat
Critical Area Review

Planned Unit Development

Type III Review
Planning 

Commission
Planning 

Commission

Shoreline Substantial Development Review
Shoreline Variance

Shoreline Conditional Use

Hearing ExaminerHearing Examiner

Non-conforming Use Change
Unlisted Use in L-1 Zone
Alternate Development 

Standards

Variance
Conditional Use

Home Occupation (>25% of 
floor area)

City Council

Planning 
Commission

and
City Council

Comprehensive Plan Amendment
Development Code Amendment

Zoning Map Amendment
Rezone (Site Specific)

Type IV Review

Planning Officialnone
Final Short Plat

Final Manufactured Home CommunityFinal Plat Review
City Councilnone

Final Long Plat
Final Binding Site Plan

3

4

Attachment to 11/5/24 CC Minutes

9



Municipal Code

Proposed

Title 19 – Land Use and Development

Current

Title 15 – Subdivisions

Title 16 – Planning

Title 17 – Zoning

Title 18 – Manufactured Home Community

Title 19 – Land Use and Development

Policy

Application and Notification Details

Code Language

Vesting

Consolidated Reviews

Complete Application

Review Types

Appeals

5

6

Attachment to 11/5/24 CC Minutes

10



Staff Report

Proposal

Changes to timelines
Creates Consistency in Review Processes

No policy changes

Criteria

Resolve Inconsistencies

Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan

Planning Commission

Recommendation

Planning Commission is 

Recommending Approval

Draft Language

Asked to review the concept,

not the specific language

7

8

Attachment to 11/5/24 CC Minutes

11



Legal Review

Amendments to Titles 15-18

Council was emailed the “strikethrough” version

Title 19 – Land Use and Development

City attorney has reviewed the ordinance

9

Attachment to 11/5/24 CC Minutes

12



3000-420-050 (R 3/13) 

THIS FORM IS INTENDED TO BE USED AS A GENERIC PUBLIC DISPLAY PERMIT FOR THE AUTHORITY HAVING 
JURISDICTION AND PYROTECHNIC OPERATORS WITHIN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

WASHINGTON STATE 
PUBLIC FIREWORKS DISPLAY PERMIT 

Applicant 

Name of Event 

Street Address 

City County 

Event Date Event Time  AM   PM 

Applicant’s/Sponsor’s Name Phone No. 

Pyrotechnic Operator License No. 

Experienced Assistant’s Name 

General Display Company Name       Phone No. 

Attach a separate piece of paper and/or copies of the following documents: 

• The number of set pieces, shells (specify single or multiple break), and other items.
• The manner and place of storage of such fireworks prior to the display.
• A diagram of the grounds on which the display is to be held showing the point at which the fireworks are to be

discharged; the location of all buildings, highways, and other lines of communication; the lines behind which the
audience will be restrained; and the location of all nearby trees, telegraph or telephone lines, or other overhead
obstruction.

• Documentary proof of procurement of Surety bond or public liability insurance.

Local Fire Code Authority 

Authority Having Jurisdiction 

Name of Permitting Official 

Title Phone No. 

Permit Granted:  Yes           Yes, with Restrictions (see “Notations” below)   No 

Restrictions/Notations 

Signature of Permitting Official Date of Approval Permit Number 

If approved, this permit is granted for the date and time noted herein under the authority of the International Fire Code in 
accordance with Revised Code of Washington 70.77 and all applicable rules and ordinances pertaining to fireworks in this 
jurisdiction.  This permit is INVALID unless in the possession of a properly licensed Pyrotechnic Operator, who is 
responsible for any and all activities associated with the firing of this show. 

MUST BE APPROVED BY THE AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION 
13



14



PY AI 006 6-14 

POLICY NUMBER:                                                                 PYROTECHNIC LIABILITY 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED 

Underwriter's at Lloyd's, London: Referred to in this endorsement as either the “Insurer” or the “Underwriters” 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

SECTION III. PERSONS INSURED 

In consideration of the premium charged for the Policy, it is hereby understood and agreed that the following 
entity(ies) is an additional insured pursuant to Section III. e), but only as respects the specific Display or 
Special Effects listed on the attached Certificate of Insurance: 

Name of Person or Organization (Additional Insured): 

Any coverage afforded to any above person or entity as an Additional Insured shall apply only with respect to 
Bodily Injury or Property Damage directly resulting from (1) the Named Insured’s ongoing operations 
performed for such specific person and entity; or (2) acts or omissions of the Additional Insured in connection 
with their general supervisions of the Named Insured’s ongoing operations. Coverage for such person or entity 
as an Additional Insured does not apply to: 

(i) Personal Injury and Advertising Injury Liability;

(ii) Fire Legal Liability;

(iii) Employee Benefits Liability;

(iv) Bodily Injury or Property Damage which the person or entity is obligated to pay as damages by reason
of the assumption of liability under a contract or agreement but this shall not apply to liability for damages the
person or entity would have in the absence of the contract or agreement;

(v) Property Damage to: (1) property owned, used or occupied by or rented to such person or entity; (2)
property in the care custody, or control of such person or entity or over which such person or entity is for any
purpose exercising physical control; or (3) any work, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in
connection with such work, which is performed for the person or entity by or on behalf of the Named Insured.

(vi) Products-Completed Operations Hazards;

(vii) Any obligation assumed by the Additional Insured in any contract related to the Display or Special
Effects listed in the attached Certificate of Insurance.

(viii) Such other Claims, Accidents, offenses, damages and/or liabilities which may be excluded pursuant to
Section V. Exclusions of the Policy.

All other terms, exclusions and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged. 

15



16



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-718

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT BETWEEEN THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE AND COMCAST 

CABLE COMMUNICATIONS MANAGEMENT, LLC 

WHEREAS, the Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC (“Comcast”) 
provides cable and communication services to businesses and residents of the City of 
Medical Lake (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, Comcast seeks to install certain cable and other equipment on City 
property located at 321 Herb St., Medical Lake, Washington 99022, as set forth in the 
attached agreement in Exhibit A (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City is agreeable to entering into the Agreement with Comcast 
under the specific terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, as follows: 

Section 1. Approval. The City Council hereby approves of the Agreement  
between the City and Comcast as set forth in the attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated 
herein. 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
resolution should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution. 

Section 3. Effective Date.   This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
passage by the City of Medical Lake City Council. 

ADOPTED this 19th day of November, 2024. 

   Terri Cooper, Mayor 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

__________________________ __________________________ 
Koss Ronholt, City Clerk Sean P. Boutz, City Attorney 

17



18



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-720 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE AMENDING THE PERSONNEL 
POLICY TO INCLUDE ADDITIONAL HOLIDAY HOURS FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE 

CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, on November 21, 2023, the City Council for the City of Medical Lake 
(“City”) approved three (3) additional paid half-day holidays for City employees for the days prior 
to the Thanksgiving, Christmas, and New Year’s Day Holidays (collectively “Holiday Half-
Days”); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to incorporate the Holiday Half-Days into the City’s 
personnel policy to be recognized annually by closing all City facilities and allowing employees 
such time off; and 

WHEREAS, incorporating the Holiday Half-Days into the City’s personnel policy is to 
occur through Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Medical Lake, 
Washington as follows: 

Section 1. Personnel Policy Amended. The City Council hereby amends the City of 
Medical Lake’s Personnel Policy under Rule VII. FRINGE BENEFITS, Section 7.1 HOLIDAYS 
to include legal half-days, allowing for closure of all City facilities at 12:00pm local time and 
release of City employees from further services on the business days immediately prior to 
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and New Year’s Day. Each Holiday Half-Day shall be 
recognized as four (4) hours of employee holiday pay. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution shall 
be found to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the 
remainder of said Resolution. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective on November 19, 2024 
after passage by the City of Medical Lake City Council. 

Adopted this 19th day of November, 2024. 

________________________________ 
Terri Cooper, Mayor 

19



ATTEST: 

Koss Ronholt, Clerk/Treasurer 

     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

    Sean P. Boutz, City Attorney 

20



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 1130 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, RELATING 
TO AMENDMENTS OF TITLES 15 THROUGH 18 AND THE CREATION OF TITLE 19 

– LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake (City) is a fully planning city under the Growth 
Management Act (GMA); and 

WHEREAS, the City must use all the permit procedures outlined within chapter 36.70B 
RCW, the Local Project Review Act; and 

WHEREAS, SB 5290 has revised section 36.70B.080 RCW, changing process timelines, 
effective January 1, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, the Medical Lake Municipal Code (MLMC) has permit procedure standards 
throughout Title 15 – Subdivisions, Title 16 – Planning, Title 17 – Zoning, and Title 18 – 
Manufactured Home Communities; and 

WHEREAS, compliance with chapter 36.70B RCW requires amendments to the above 
Titles; and 

WHEREAS, to better serve the City and its citizens, a new title, Title 19- Land Use and 
Development, is being adopted to provide all permit process information in one location. 
Furthermore, Title 19 will be populated as all of the regulations in Titles 15-18 are updated; and 

WHEREAS, no policy changes are being implemented through these text amendments; 
and 

WHEREAS, these text amendments were found to be exempt from State Environmental 
Protection Act (SEPA) review per WAC 197-11-800 Part Nine #19, Procedural Actions.; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake Planning Commission (Planning Commission) 
considered the proposed text amendments at a properly noticed public hearing on September 26, 
2024, so as to receive public testimony; and 

WHEREAS, at its September 26, 2024, meeting, the Planning Commission voted to 
recommend approval of the amendment; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, on October 31, 2024, the City provided the 
Washington State Department of Commerce with a sixty (60) day notice of its intent to adopt the 
amendment(s) to the MLMC; and  

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2024, the City of Medical Lake City Council (City Council) 
discussed the proposed text amendments at a properly noticed open public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the entire public record, public comments, 
written and oral, and the Planning Commission’s recommendation; and 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is supported by the staff report and materials associated with 
this Ordinance, including documents on file with the City; and 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is also supported by the professional judgment and experience 
of the City staff who have worked on this proposal; and 

21



WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the proposed amendments are in accord with 
the Comprehensive Plan, will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or general welfare, and 
are in the best interest of the citizens and property owners of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the proposed amendments are 
consistent with the goals and requirements of the GMA; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Medical Lake, Washington 
does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Amendment. Section 15.04.050 – Processing with other applications, is 
hereby removed from the MLMC. 

Section 2.  Amendment. Section 15.04.055 – Time limitations, is hereby removed from 
the MLMC. 

Section 3. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.04.060 – Amendments, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

Amendments to Title 15 shall be processed as a Type IV Review. The Type IV Review 
process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.050 – Type IV Reviews. 

Section 4. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.12.020 – Classification of subdivisions, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

A land division that creates four (4) or fewer lots is considered a short plat. A land division 
that creates more than four (4) lots is considered a long plat (preliminary plat). 

Section 5. Amendment. Section 15.12.030 – Coordination of flexible zoning 
application with subdivision approval, is hereby removed from the MLMC. 

Section 6. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.12.040 – General procedure, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Preliminary Plats are processed through a Type III Review with the Planning Commission 
holding a public hearing and making a recommendation to the City Council who makes the final 
decision. The Type III Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews. 

Section 7. Amendment. Section 15.12.050 – Preparation and copies, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 8. Amendment. Section 15.12.070 – Public hearing, is hereby removed from 
the MLMC. 

Section 9. Amendment. Section 15.12.080 – Notice of hearing, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 10.  Amendment. Section 15.12.090 – Approval or rejection, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 11. Amendment. Section 15.12.130 – Appeal of a decision, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 12. Amendment. Section 15.12.140 – General requirements, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 13. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.12.150 – Application, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

For a Preliminary Plat application to be deemed complete, the following must be submitted: 

22



(1) An appropriate City application form;
(2) A written description of the proposal;
(3) A preliminary plat depicting, at a minimum, lot lines, easements, rights-of-way, and

topographic features;
(4) A traffic generation letter;
(5) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request;
(6) A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC Section 15.12.100 – Factors

to be Considered;
(7) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and
(8) The applicable fee.

Section 14. Amendment. Section 15.22.020 – Submission for approval, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 15. Amendment. Section 15.22.030 – Approval or rejection, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 16. Amendment. Section 15.22.040 – Additional requirements, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 17. Amendment. Section 15.22.050 – Effect of approval, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 18. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.22.060 – General procedures, is hereby 
amended as follows: 

Final Plats are processed through a Final Plat Review with the Planning Official making a 
recommendation to the City Council who makes the final decision. The Final Plat Review process 
is found in MLMC Section 19.270.060 – Final Plat Reviews. 

Section 19. Amendment. Section 15.22.070 – Specific Requirements, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 20. Amendment. Section 15.22.080 – Dedication, acknowledgment, and 
endorsement, is hereby removed from the MLMC. 

Section 21. Amendment. Section 15.26.030 – Application procedures, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 22. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.26.040 – Application, is hereby amended 
as follows: 

For a Preliminary Short Plat application to be deemed complete, the following must be 
submitted: 

(1) An appropriate City application form;
(2) A written description of the proposal;
(3) A preliminary plat depicting, at a minimum, lot lines, easements, rights-of-way, and

topographic features;
(4) A traffic generation letter;
(5) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request;
(6) A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC Section 15.26.070 – Approval;

23



(7) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and
(8) The applicable fee.

Section 23. Amendment. Section 15.26.050 – Preparation of final short plat, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 24. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.26.060 – Review procedures, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
Preliminary Short Plats are processed through a Type I Review. The Type I Review process is 
found in MLMC Section 19.270.020 – Type I Reviews. 
During the preliminary short plat review the following departments and agencies shall review the 
plat for conformance with the following: 

A. The Public Works Director shall notify the Planning Official of the following:
1. Water supply methods and sanitary sewage disposal methods, and stormwater

management contemplated for use in the proposed short plat do or do not
conform with current standards; and

2. Where sewer lines shall be tied to the City sewer system and whether they do or
do not comply with City codes.

3. The proposed roads, utilities and other improvements do or do not conform to
current standards; and

4. Access to the boundary of all short plats shall be provided by an open,
constructed and maintained public road, except that the access to the boundary
of the short subdivision by private road may be permitted where the private roads
are otherwise permitted by this title; and

5. That the survey does or does not conform to the standard practice and principles
of land surveying.

B. The Spokane County fire chief shall respond to the Planning Official with any concerns on
fire flow, necessary hydrant improvements and ingress and egress of emergency vehicles.

C. Other agencies shall notify the Planning Official of their concerns for consideration in the
findings for approval or denial of the short plat.

Final Short Plats are processed through a Final Plat review with the Planning Official making the 
final decision. The Final Plat Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.060 – Final Plat 
Reviews. 

Section 25. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.26.070 – Approval, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

The following criteria must be met for approval of a preliminary short plat. 

(1) Its conformance with the general purposes, standards and requirements of the City's
comprehensive plan, zoning code, and the City environmental policy ordinance,
and to any other applicable laws and policies;

(2) If appropriate provisions are made for home drainage-ways, utilities, access, streets,
alleys, and other public ways, water supplies, and sanitary waste disposals;

(3) The physical characteristics of the short subdivision site. Disapproval may be made
because of flood inundation or swamp conditions. Construction of protective
improvements may be required as a condition of approval;

24



(4) All other relevant facts to determine whether the public use or interest will be 
served by the short plat;  

(5) All standards for improvements as required by this chapter or as conditions of 
approval of the short plat have been met.  

(6) The applicant has passed a concurrency test in accordance with MLMC Chapter 
16.02.  

Section 26. Amendment. Section 15.26.080 – Appeal, is hereby removed from the 
MLMC. 

Section 27. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.27.030 – Procedure, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Preliminary Binding Site Plans are processed through a Type I Review with the Planning 
Official making the final decision. The Type I Review process is found in MLMC Section 
19.270.020 – Type I Reviews. 

Final Binding Site Plans are processed through a Final Plat Review with the City Council 
making the final decision. The Final Plat Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.060 
- Final Plat Reviews. 

Section 28. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.27.040 – Preliminary application, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

For a Preliminary Binding Site Plan application to be deemed complete, the following must 
be submitted: 

(1) An appropriate City application form; 
(2) A written description of the proposal; 
(3) A preliminary plat depicting, at a minimum, lot lines, easements, rights-of-way, and 

topographic features; 
(4) A traffic generation letter; 
(5) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request; 
(6) A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC Section 15.27.010 – Purpose. 
(7) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and 
(8) The applicable fee. 

 
Section 29. Amendment. Section 15.27.050 – Final site plan, is hereby removed from 

the MLMC. 
Section 30. Amendment. Section 15.27.060 – Appeal of decision, is hereby removed 

from the MLMC. 
Section 31. Amendment. Section 15.27.070 – Filing of final site plan, is hereby 

removed from the MLMC. 
Section 32. Amendment. MLMC Section 15.28.010 – Procedure and authority for 

granting, is hereby amended as follows: 

There is established a procedure for modifying or varying the regulations set forth in this title.  
(1) Any subdivider can make application to the planning commission for a variation or 

modification of any provision in this title due to preexisting topographic, or other 

25



physical conditions characteristic of the land included in the preliminary plat, 
subdivision or dedication.  

(2) Where the planning commission finds that extraordinary hardships or practical
difficulties may result from strict compliance with these regulations and/or the
purposes of these regulations may be served to a greater extent by an alternative
proposal, it may approve variances, exceptions, and waiver of conditions to these
subdivision regulations so that substantial justice may be done and the public
interest secured.

(3) The application shall include any and all details necessary to support the application
provided that the variance, exception, or waiver of conditions shall not have the
effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of this title; and further provided the
planning commission shall not approve variances, exceptions, and waiver of
conditions unless it shall make findings based upon the evidence presented to it in
each specific case.

(4) The application and request must be received concurrently with the preliminary plat
and will be processed through a Type III Review as found in MLMC Section
19.270.040 – Type III Reviews; and must conform with the following provisions:

(A) The granting of the variance, exception, or waiver of conditions will not be
detrimental to the public safety, health, or welfare or injurious to other
property.

(B) The conditions upon which the request is based are unique to the property
for which the relief is sought and are not applicable generally to other
property.

(C) Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical
conditions of the specific property involved, a particular hardship to the
owner would result, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict
letter of these regulations is carried out.

(D) The relief sought will not in any manner vary the provisions of the zoning
code, comprehensive plan, or official map, except that those documents
may be amended in the manner prescribed by law.

(5) The planning commission shall make a decision on all variance requests in
conjunction with making a decision on the preliminary plat as outlined in MLMC
Section 15.12.100. If, in the opinion of the planning commission, the subdivider
has justifiable cause to make application for additional variations or modifications
to the regulations of this title such applications shall follow the same procedure as
described in this chapter.

Section 33. Amendment. Section 15.34.050 – Appeal, is hereby removed from the 
MLMC. 

Section 34. Amendment. Section 16.02.030 – Concurrency test, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

(a) Application. All development permit applications are subject to a concurrency test
except those exempted in Section 16.02.050. If a concurrency test is conducted for

26



the preliminary plat application, no concurrency test shall be required for the final 
plat application.  

(b) Procedures. The concurrency test will be performed in the processing of the 
development permit and conducted by the planning department, public works 
department and other facility land service providers.  

(1) The planning department shall provide the overall coordination of the 
concurrency test by notifying the facility and service providers of all 
applications requiring a concurrency test as set forth in subsection A of this 
section; notifying the applicant of the test results; notifying the facility and 
service providers of the final outcome (approval or denial) of the 
development permit; and notifying the facility and service providers of any 
expired development permits or discontinued certificates of capacity.  

(2) All facility and service providers shall be responsible for maintaining and 
monitoring their available and planned capacity by conducting the 
concurrency test, for their individual facility, for all applications requiring 
a concurrency test as set forth in subsection A of this section; reserving the 
capacity needed for each application; accounting for the capacity for each 
exempted application which uses capacity as set forth in Section 16.02.050; 
notifying the planning department of the results of the tests; and reinstating 
any capacity for an expired development, discontinued certificate of 
capacity or other action resulting in an applicant no longer needing capacity 
which has been reserved.  

(3) The facility and service providers shall be responsible for annually reporting 
to the city the total, available, and planned capacity of their facility or 
service as of the end of each calendar year. Such reporting shall be made 
before January 31st for inclusion in the amendment process of the capital 
facilities program.  

(c) Test. Development applications that would result in a reduction of a level of service 
below the minimum level of service standard cannot be approved. For potable 
water, electric utilities, sanitary sewer, solid waste and stormwater management 
only available capacity will be used in conducting the concurrency test. For roads, 
transit, law enforcement, fire, emergency medical service, schools, parks, and 
libraries, available and planned capacity will be used in conducting the concurrency 
test.  

(1) If the capacity of concurrency facilities is equal to or greater than the 
capacity required to maintain the level of service standard for the impact 
from the development application, the concurrency test is passed. A 
certificate of capacity will be issued according to the provisions of Section 
16.02.040.  

(2) If the capacity of concurrency facilities is less than the capacity required to 
maintain the level of service standard for the impact from the development 
application, the concurrence test is not passed. The applicant may:  

(A) Accept ninety-day reservation of concurrency facilities that exist 
and modify the application to reduce the need for concurrency 
facilities that do not exist;  

(B) Accept ninety-day reservation of concurrency facilities that exist 
and demonstrate to the service providers satisfaction that the 
development will have a lower need for capacity than usual and, 
therefore, capacity is adequate;  

27



(C) Accept ninety-day reservation of concurrency facilities that exist
and arrange with the service provider for the provision of the
additional capacity of concurrency facilities required; or

(D) Appeal the results of the concurrency test to the hearing examiner
in accordance with the provisions of MLMC Chapter 19.290 -
Appeals.

(d) Concurrency Inquiry Application. An applicant may inquire whether or not
concurrency facilities exist without an accompanying request for a development
permit. A fee may be charged for such a concurrency test but capacity cannot be
reserved. A certificate of capacity will only be issued in conjunction with a
development permit approval as outlined in Section 16.02.040.

Section 35. Amendment. MLMC 16.02.070 – Appeals, is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

The concurrency test is considered a Type I Review decision and may be appealed per the 
process in MLMC Chapter 19.290 – Appeals. 

Section 36. Amendment. Chapter 16.04 – Permit Process, is hereby removed from the 
MLMC. 

Section 37. Amendment. MLMC Section 16.05.140 – Appeals, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

An impact fee is considered a Type I Review decision and may be appealed per the process 
in MLMC Chapter 19.290 – Appeals. 

Section 38. Amendment. Section 17.10.040 – Approval process, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
A. Critical Areas Permit Process.

1. Critical Area Reviews are processed as a Type III review with the Planning Commission
holding a public hearing and the City Council making the final decision. The Type III
review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews.

2. For a Critical Area Permit application to be deemed complete, the following information
must be submitted:
a. An appropriate City application form;
b. A written description of the proposal;
c. A site plan;
d. All required reports and mitigation plans;
e. A written response to all applicable approval criteria;
f. A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and
g. The applicable fee.

B. Notice on Title—Covenant and Tracts.
1. Covenants. This section applies to all nonexempt projects that involve critical areas and

buffers.
a. In order to inform subsequent purchasers of real property of the existence of critical

areas, the owner of any property containing a critical area or buffer on which a
development proposal is approved shall file a covenant with the county records and

28



elections division according to the direction of the City. The covenant shall state the 
presence of the critical area or buffer on the property, the application of this chapter 
to the property, and the fact that limitations on actions in or affecting the critical area 
or buffer may exist. The covenant shall "run with the land."  

b. The applicant shall submit proof that the covenant has been filed for public record
before the City approves any site development or construction for the property or,
in the case of subdivisions, short subdivisions, planned unit developments, binding
site plans, and other developments that involve platting, at or before recording of the
plat.

2. Tracts. This section applies in addition to subsection (B)(1) of this section to projects that
involve platting on properties containing fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas,
wetlands, and their buffers. The location of the tract, critical area(s), and buffer(s) shall
be shown on the face of the plat. See subsection (B)(2)(b) of this section for exceptions.
a. The property owner shall place the subject critical areas and buffers in one or more

nondevelopable tracts except when:

i. Creation of a nonbuildable tract would result in violation of minimum lot depth
standards; or

ii. The responsible official determines a tract is impractical.
b. When an exception in subsection (B)(2)(a) of this section applies, residential lots

may extend into the critical area(s) or buffer(s) provided:

i. The location of the outer perimeter of the critical area(s) and buffer(s) is marked
in the field and approved by the Planning Official prior to the commencement
of permitted activities and maintained throughout the duration of the permit.

ii. A permanent physical demarcation along the outer/upland boundary of the
critical area buffer(s) is installed and thereafter maintained. Such demarcation
may consist of fencing, hedging or other prominent physical marking that
allows wildlife passage, blends with the critical area environment, and is
approved by the Planning Official.

iii. Permanent signs are posted at an interval of one per lot for single-family
residential uses or at a maximum interval of two hundred feet, or as otherwise
determined by the Planning Official, and must be perpetually maintained by the
property owner. The sign shall be worded as follows or with alternative
language approved by the Planning Official: "Protected Natural Resource. Call
509-565-5000 for more information."

C. Financial Assurances.
1. When mitigation required pursuant to a development proposal is not completed prior to

the City final permit approval, such as final plat approval or final building inspection, the
City shall require the applicant to provide security in a form and amount deemed
acceptable by the City. If the development proposal is subject to mitigation, the applicant
shall provide security in a form and amount deemed acceptable by the City to ensure
mitigation is fully functional (including, but not limited to, construction, maintenance,
and monitoring). The security shall be in the amount of one hundred twenty-five percent
of the estimated cost of restoring the functions of the critical area that are at risk.

2. The security shall remain in effect for a minimum of five (5) years or until the City
determines, in writing, that the standards have been met.

29



3. Depletion, failure, or collection of bond funds shall not discharge the obligation of an 
applicant or violator to complete required mitigation, maintenance, monitoring, or 
restoration.  

4. Public development proposals shall be relieved from having to comply with the bonding 
requirements of this section if public funds have previously been committed in the project 
budget or capital improvement budget for mitigation, maintenance, monitoring, or 
restoration.  

5. Failure to satisfy any critical area requirements established by law or condition including, 
but not limited to, the failure to provide a monitoring report within thirty (30) days after 
it is due or comply with other provisions of an approved mitigation plan shall constitute 
a default, and the City may demand payment of any financial guarantees or require other 
action authorized by the City code or any other law.  

6. Any funds recovered pursuant to this section shall be used to complete the required 
mitigation. Excess funds shall be returned to the applicant.  

D. Critical Area Inspections. Reasonable access to the site shall be provided to the City, state, and 
federal agency review staff for the purpose of inspections during any proposal review, 
restoration, emergency action, or monitoring period.  

E. Appeals. Any decision to approve, condition, or deny a development proposal or other activity 
based on the requirements of this chapter may be appealed according to MLMC Chapter 19.135 
– Interpretations and Chapter 19.290 – Appeals.  

 
Section 39. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.16.050 – Conditional property uses, is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
The following conditional uses may be permitted in the R-1, single-family residential zoning 

district through a Conditional Use Permit as described in MLMC Chapter 17.48, Variances, 
Conditional Use Permits and Appeals.  

(1) Churches, schools, hospitals and government;  
(2) Dependent care housing;  
(3) Essential public facilities other than secure community transition facilities.  

Section 40. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.18.050 – Conditional property uses, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

The following conditional uses may be permitted in the R-1P, single-family planned 
residential zoning district through a Conditional Use Permit as described in MLMC Chapter 17.48, 
Variances, Conditional Use Permits and Appeals.  

(1) Churches, schools, hospitals and government;  
(2) Dependent care housing;  
(3) Essential public facilities other than secure community transition facilities.  

Section 41. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.20.050 – Conditional property uses, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

The following conditional uses may be permitted in the R-2 two-family residential zoning 
district through a Conditional Use Permit as described in MLMC Chapter 17.48, Variances, 
Conditional Use Permits and Appeals. 

(1) Churches, schools, hospitals, and government;  

30



(2) Dependent care housing;
(3) Essential public facilities other than secure community transition facilities.

Section 42. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.24.050 – Conditional property uses, is
hereby amended to read as follows: 

The following conditional uses may be permitted in the R-3 zoning district through a 
Conditional Use Permit as described in MLMC Chapter 17.48, Variances, Conditional Use Permits 
and Appeals. 

(1) Churches, schools, hospitals, and government;
(2) Dependent care and special need housing;
(3) Essential public facilities other than secure community transition facilities;
(4) Community center.

Section 43. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.27.050 – Modification of development
standards, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
(a) The following development standards may be modified by the Medical Lake hearing

examiner pursuant to the provisions of MLMC Chapter 2.80.
(1) Building setbacks;
(2) Height of building or structure;
(3) Lot size;
(4) Lot width.

(b) Standards which may not be modified or altered by this process are:
(1) Shoreline regulations when the property is located in an area under the jurisdiction of

the City shoreline management program;
(2) Standards pertaining to development in environmentally sensitive areas;
(3) Regulations pertaining to nonconforming uses.

(c) Basis for Approval of Alternative Development Standards. Approval of alternative
development standards in school and public lands zone differs from the variance procedure
described in Chapter 17.48 of the Medical Lake Municipal Code in that rather than being
based upon a hardship or unusual circumstance related to a specific property, the approval of
alternative development standards proposed shall be based upon the criteria listed in this
paragraph. In evaluating a request which proposes to modify the development standards of
the proposal, the hearing examiner shall consider and base the decision upon the ability of the
proposal to satisfy the following criteria:
(1) The proposals compatibility with surrounding properties, especially related to:

(A) Landscaping and buffering of buildings, parking, loading and storage areas,
(B) Public safety,
(C) Site access, on-site circulation and off-street parking,
(D) Light and shadow impacts,
(E) Generation of nuisance irritants such as noise, smoke, dust, odor, glare, vibration

or other undesirable impacts,
(F) Architectural design of buildings and harmonious use of materials;

31



(2) The unique characteristics of the subject property;  
(3) The unique characteristics of the proposed use(s);  
(4) The arrangement of buildings and open spaces as they relate to various uses within or 

adjacent to the planned development;  
(5) Visual impact of the development upon the surrounding area;  
(6) Public improvements proposed in connection with the proposal;  
(7) Preservation of unique natural features of the property;  
(8) The public benefit derived by allowing the proposed alteration of development 

standards.  
(d) This request for Alternative Development Standards is processed as a Type III Review with 

the Hearing Examiner holding the hearing and making the final decision. The Type III Review 
process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews. 

(e) For an Alternative Development Standards application to be deemed complete, the following 
must be submitted: 
(1) An appropriate City application form; 
(2) A written description of the proposal; 
(3) A site plan; 
(4) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request; 
(5) A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC Section 17.27.050(c) above;  
(6) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and 
(7) The applicable fee. 

 
Section 44. Amendment. Section 17.27.070 – Appeal process, is hereby removed from 

the MLMC. 
Section 45. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.28.040 – Conditional property uses, is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

The following conditional uses may be permitted in the C-1 zone through a Conditional Use 
Permit as described in MLMC, Chapter 17.48, Variances, Conditional Use Permit and Appeals.  

(1) Home businesses operated by residential property owners.  
Section 46. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.30.090 – Relief from location 

requirements, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
(a) Whenever the proponents of an adult entertainment facility subject to the location 

requirements set forth in this chapter feel that the strict application of such requirements is 
not necessary to achieve an effective degree of physical separation between the adult 
entertainment facility and the land uses listed in this chapter, the proponents may apply to the 
hearing examiner for relief from such requirements. In determining when relief should be 
granted, and to what extent, the hearing examiner shall consider the following criteria in 
addition to those variance criteria listed elsewhere in the Municipal Code:  
(1) Topographical and other features of the land providing actual separation between the 

proposed business and those protected land uses listed in this chapter;  
(2) Pedestrians and vehicular circulation patterns in the vicinity of the proposed activity;  

32



(3) Any other fact or circumstances having a significant effect upon the need for the full
separation distance required by this chapter.

(b) If after considering these criteria the hearing examiner finds that an effective separation
between the proposed adult concession and the protected land uses listed in this chapter can
be achieved without requiring the full distance of separation provided by this chapter, the
hearing examiner shall determination the degree of relief to be allowed and shall grant such
relief, otherwise, the application for the relief shall be denied.

(c) This request is processed through a Type III Review where the Hearing Examiner holds the
hearing and makes the final decision. The Type III Review process is found in MLMC Section
19.270.040 – Type III Reviews.

Section 47. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.32.040 – Permitted uses, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

The land uses permitted in the L-1 zone are as follows: 
(1) Warehouse, wholesale and storage establishments;
(2) Metal working;
(3) Preserving;
(4) Packaging;
(5) Canning;
(6) Freezing;
(7) Dyeing or finishing of textiles;
(8) Manufacture and finishing of furniture and cabinets;
(9) Assembling of electrical and electronic equipment;
(10) Printing and publishing and sign painting;
(11) Storage yards for new materials and new equipment;
(12) Agricultural uses, excluding the keeping of livestock and cultivation;
(13) Service stations;
(14) Convenience stores;
(15) Cafes and restaurants (not serving alcoholic beverages);
(16) Large machinery rentals;
(17) Farm equipment sales and service;
(18) Trucking terminals, truck repair and service, tire repair shops;
(19) Truck and trailer sales;
(20) Feed and seed stores;
(21) Any light manufacturing meeting all standards set forth in this chapter;
(22) On-site and off-site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities, provided that such

facilities meet the state siting criteria adopted pursuant to the requirements of RCW
70.105.210;

(23) Migratory amusements, such as circuses and carnivals, etc.;
(24) Signs in accordance with MLMC Chapter 17.39, Signs;
(25) Fences and hedges in accordance with MLMC Chapter 17.37, Fences and Hedges;

33



(26) Wireless telecommunication towers, antennas and other facilities in accordance with 
MLMC Chapter 17.52;  

(27) All accessory and secondary uses, buildings or structures ordinarily supportive, related 
to and/or appurtenant to any of the essential uses allowed in this zone including shipping 
containers used for storage;  

(28) Any uses not listed may be permitted by the hearing examiner if it is found that the 
proposed use conforms to the spirit and intent of all sections of the L-1 zone. This 
request is processed through a Type III Review with the Hearing Examiner holding the 
hearing and making the final decision. The Type III Review process is found in MLMC 
Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews. 

 
Section 48. Amendment. Section 17.34.090 – Application conference, is hereby 

removed from the MLMC. 
Section 49. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.34.100 – PUD plan, is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 
For a Planned Unit Development application to be deemed complete, the following must be 

submitted: 
1. An appropriate City application form; 

2. A written description of the proposal; 
3. A site plan; 
4. Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request; 
5. A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC 17.34.040 – Conditions and 

Standards;  
6. A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and 
7. The applicable fee. 

Section 50. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.34.110 – Public hearing, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Planned Unit Developments are processed through a Type III Review with the Planning 
Commission holding a public hearing and making a recommendation to the City Council who 
makes the final decision. The Type III Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.040 – 
Type III Reviews. 

Section 51. Amendment. Section 17.34.112 – Notice of hearing, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 52. Amendment. Section 17.34.113 – Approval or rejection, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 53. Amendment. Section 17.34.120 – Failure to commence construction, is 
hereby removed from the MLMC. 

Section 54. Amendment. Section 17.34.130 – Appeal of decision, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 55. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.35.15 – Conditional property uses, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

The following conditional property uses may be permitted in the institutional zoning 
district through a Conditional Use Permit as described in MLMC by the hearing examiner in 
accordance with Chapter 2.80, Hearing Examiner, Chapter 17.48, Variances, Conditional Use 

34



Permits and Appeals. and Chapter 16.04, Permit Process. Development and performance standards 
shall be consistent with those outlined in this chapter unless otherwise approved by the hearing 
examiner. A final decision shall be made within one hundred twenty days from receiving a 
completed application:  

(1) Secure community transition facilities.
Section 56. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.37.030 – Authorization for exception to 

height limitation, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
A front yard fence height exception may be granted through a Type I Review with the Planning 
Official making the final decision. The exception is limited to a maximum of six (6) feet. The Type 
I Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.020 – Type I Reviews.  
To be granted approval, the following criteria must be met:  

(1) The exception is necessary due to special circumstances relating to size, shape,
topography, location or surrounding of the subject property;

(2) Construction of the fence pursuant to the exception will not create a traffic vision hazard;
(3) Construction of the fence pursuant to the exception will not be detrimental to the public

welfare, nor injurious to property or improvements located in the vicinity of the subject
property.

Section 57. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.43.040 – Change, alteration, expansion or 
replacement, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
(a) A legally nonconforming building/structure which contains a conforming use may be

expanded, only if it can be done in a manner that shall not increase the nonconformity; or
(b) The following procedures shall be followed to change a nonconforming use to a different

nonconforming use, expand a nonconforming use throughout a structure, expand a
nonconforming structure or use in a manner that shall increase the nonconformity, or replace
a nonconforming use and/or building/structure that is fifty percent damaged or decayed or
deteriorated in value (Dangerous Buildings, MLMC Chapter 14.24). Value as used herein
shall be the valuation placed upon the building/structure for purposes of general taxation:
(1) For an application to be deemed complete, the following information must be included:

(A) An appropriate City application form;
(B) A written description of the proposal;
(C) A site plan;
(D) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request;
(E) A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC 17.43.040(b)(2) below;
(F) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and
(G) The applicable fee.

(2) The hearing examiner may grant the relief requested as authorized by MLMC Chapter
2.80 if the hearing examiner finds all of the following:
(A) That the expansion, change, reconstruction or replacement requested would not be

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, and
(B) That the proposed expansion, change, reconstruction or replacement is compatible

with the character of the neighborhood; and, in the case of an expansion or change,
does not significantly jeopardize future development of the area in compliance with
the provisions and the intent of the zoning district, and

35



(C) That the significance of the hardship asserted by the applicant is more compelling 
than, and reasonably overbalances, the public interest which would result from the 
denial of the relief requested, and  

(D) That the use or building/structure was lawful at the time of its inception, and  
(E) That the value of nearby properties will not be significantly depressed by approving 

the requested expansion, change, reconstruction or replacement.  
(3) The hearing examiner shall deny the proposed expansion, change, reconstruction or 

replacement if he/she finds that one or more of the provisions in Section 17.43.040(b)(2) 
are not met.  

(4) When approving a change in, or the expansion, reconstruction or replacement of a 
nonconforming use or building/structure, the hearing examiner may attach conditions to 
the proposed change, expansion, reconstruction or replacement or any other portion of 
the development in order to assure that the development is improved, arranged, designed 
and operated to be compatible with the objectives of the comprehensive plan, applicable 
development regulations and neighboring land uses and transportation systems.  

(5) A request for a change to a nonconforming use is processed through a Type III Review 
with the Hearing Examiner holding the hearing and making the final decision. The Type 
III Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews. 

Section 58. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.45.030 – Home occupation minimum 
standards, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

A home occupation must meet the following minimum conditions:  
(1) The use of the dwelling unit for the home occupation shall be clearly incidental and 

subordinate to its use as a residence.  
(2) The applicant must register with the Washington State Department of Revenue, or 

furnish proof that they are exempt from registering with said Department of Revenue.  
(3) No structure in which a home occupation is conducted or is proposed to be conducted 

will be altered or remodeled in any manner that would detract from the residential 
character of a home or accessory building.  

(4) No person, other than immediate residents of the structure plus a maximum of one 
outside employee working at the residence at any one time, may be employed in the 
home occupation.  

(5) There shall be no exterior or window displays, signs, storage of materials, or sample 
commodities displayed outside of the premises, with the exception of one 
nonilluminated business sign not to exceed one square foot in area.  

(6) No materials or equipment shall be permitted which would be detrimental to the 
residential use of nearby residences by causing vibration, noise, dust, smoke, odor, 
interference with radio or television reception, or other factors.  

(7) Materials or commodities may be delivered to or from the home occupation between the 
hours of seven a.m. and six p.m. Monday through Saturday.  

(8) No parking shall be allowed beyond that normal in a residential area and no excessive 
vehicular or pedestrian traffic shall be present as a result of the home occupation. 
Designated or additional off-street parking may be required depending on the business.  

(9) The hours of operation for a home occupation shall be limited to seven a.m. to ten p.m., 
Monday through Saturday, unless otherwise stipulated by the Planning Official or the 
hearing examiner, as appropriate.  

36



(10) Buffers or screens will be provided when deemed necessary by the Planning
Official and/or the hearing examiner to reduce potential impacts to adjacent properties.

(11) Such use shall conform to all other requirements specified in this chapter, as well
as any special conditions imposed on the home business by the Planning Official or the
hearing examiner, as appropriate.

(12) Bed and breakfast facilities shall require a minimum of one additional off-street
parking space per unit with adequate ingress and egress to every space. Each parking
space shall be improved with an impervious surface subject to the approval of the City
Public Works Director and shall comply with minimum dimensional and square footage
requirements as stipulated in Chapter 17.36 of this code.

(13) Bed and breakfast facility applicants shall furnish proof of compliance with all
standards and specifications of the Spokane County health district prior to operation, or
furnish proof that they are exempt from an standards or specifications by the Spokane
County health district.

Section 59. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.45.070 – Administration, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

Wherein a home occupation occupies less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the gross floor 
area of the primary residence and the accessory buildings, the Home Occupation Permit will be 
processed through a Type II Review with the Planning Official making the final decision. The Type 
II Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.27.030 – Type II Reviews. 

Wherein a home occupation occupies more than twenty-five percent (25%), but less than 
fifty percent (50%) of the gross floor area of the primary residence and the accessory buildings, 
the Home Occupation Permit will be processed through a Type III Review with the Hearing 
Examiner making the final decision. The Type III Review process is found in MLMC Section 
19.270.040 – Type III Reviews. 

Section 60. Amendment. Section 17.45.100 – Public hearing notification, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 61. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.48.020 – Petitions, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Any person desiring to appeal an interpretation of this Title by the Planning Official shall 
follow the direction of MLMC 19.135 – Interpretation. 

Section 62. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.48.030 – Authority, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

The hearing examiner shall have the authority to review, affirm, overrule, modify or amend 
any interpretation of the provisions of this title made by the Planning Official thereof, and shall 
have the authority to grant variances and permits for conditional property uses, subject to the 
limitations contained herein. 

Section 63. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.48.040 – Application, is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

For an application for a Conditional Use Permit or a Variance to be deemed complete, the 
following information must be submitted: 

(1) An appropriate City application form;
(2) A written description of the proposal;
(3) A site plan;

37



(4) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request;
(5) A written response to the approval criteria.  The approval criteria for Conditional Use

Permits is found in MLMC Section 17.48.080 – Conditional Use Permits and Section
17.48.090 – Conditional Use Permits – Conditions and Requirements. The approval
criteria for Variances are found in MLMC Section 17.48.070 - Variances;

(6) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and
(7) The applicable fee.
Section 64. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.48.050 - Variance and conditional use

permits-Procedures, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
Conditional Use Permits and Variances are processed through a Type III Review process 

with the Hearing Examiner holding the public hearing and making the final decision. The Type III 
Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews. 

Section 65. Amendment. Section 17.48.060 – Public hearing notification, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 66. Amendment. Section 17.48.100 – Report by hearing examiner, is hereby 
removed from the MLMC. 

Section 67. Amendment. Section 17.48.110 – Records, is hereby removed from the 
MLMC. 

Section 68. Amendment. Section 17.48.120 – Appeals to council, is hereby removed 
from the MLMC. 

Section 69. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.52.040 – Additional conditional use 
permit criteria for monopole I, monopole II, and lattice tower, is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

In addition to the conditional use permit criteria specified in MLMC Section 17.48.080 – 
Conditional Use Permits and Section 17.48.090 – Conditional Use Permits – Conditions and 
Requirements, the following specific criteria shall be met before a conditional use permit can be 
granted:  

(1) Visual Impact.
(A) Antennas may not extend more than fifteen (15) feet above their supporting

structure, monopole lattice tower, building, or other structure.
(B) Site location and development shall preserve the pre-existing character of the

surrounding buildings and land uses and the zone district to the extent consistent
with the function of the communications equipment. Wireless communication
towers shall be integrated through location and designed to blend in with the
existing characteristics of the site to the extent practical. Existing on-site vegetation
shall be preserved or improved, and disturbance of the existing topography shall be
minimized, unless such disturbance would result in less visual impact of the site to
the surrounding area.

(C) Accessory equipment facilities used to house wireless communications equipment
should be located within buildings. When they cannot be located in buildings,
equipment shelters or cabinets shall be screened and landscaped.

(D) Landscaping. Landscaping, as described herein, shall be required to screen personal
wireless service facilities as much as possible, to soften the appearance of the cell
site. The City may permit any combination of existing vegetation, topography,

38



walls, decorative fences or other features instead of landscaping, if they achieve the 
same degree of screening as the required landscaping.  

(E) Screening. The visual impacts of a personal wireless service facility shall be
mitigated through landscaping or other screening materials at the base of the tower
and ancillary structures. The following landscaping and buffering shall be required
around the perimeter of the monopole I, monopole II, and lattice tower and
accessory structures except that the City may waive the standards for those sides of
the facility that are not in public view. Landscaping shall be installed on the outside
of fences. Further, existing vegetation shall be preserved to the maximum extent
practicable and may be used as a substitute for or as a supplement to landscaping
requirements:
(i) A row of evergreen trees a minimum of six (6) feet tall at planting a maximum

of six (6) feet apart shall be planted around the perimeter of the fence, and
(ii) A continuous hedge at least thirty-six (36) inches high at planting capable of

growing to at least forty-eight (48) inches within eighteen (18) months shall
be planted in front of the tree line referenced above.

(iii) In the event that landscaping is not maintained at the required level, the City
after giving thirty days' advanced written notice may maintain or establish the
landscaping and bill both the owner and lessee for such costs until such costs
are paid in full.

(2) Noise. As a condition the service provider of the wireless communication facilities (WCF)
will need to provide information regarding the dB reading associated with the structure as
measured from the nearest property line.

(3) Other Application and Conditional Use Criteria-FCC Preemption. In any proceeding
regarding the issuance of a conditional use permit under the terms of this chapter, federal
law prohibits consideration of environmental effects of radio frequency emissions to the
extent that the proposed facilities comply with the Federal Communications Commission
regulations concerning such emission.

Section 70. Amendment. There is hereby added to the MLMC, Section 17.56.045 –
Amendments to Development Regulations, as follows: 

The regulations found in Title 15 – Subdivisions, Title 16 – Planning, Title 17 – Zoning, 
Title 18 – Manufactured Home Communities, and Title 19 – Land Use and Development of this 
municipal code, are subject to the Growth Management Act, RCW 36.70. These regulations may 
be amended outside of the annual comprehensive plan amendment cycle. Amendments to 
development regulations are processed through a Type IV Review and the approval criteria are 
found in MLMC Section 17.56.100 – Criteria for Evaluation of Plan Amendments. The Type IV 
Review process is found in MLMC Section 19.270.050 – Type IV Reviews. 

Section 71. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.56.050 – Annual amendment process, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

(1) Proposals for amendments of the comprehensive plan shall be considered by the City
Council no more frequently than once every year;

(2) Proposals for plan amendment shall be considered concurrently so that the cumulative
effect of various proposals can be ascertained; and

(3) Proposals may be considered at separate meetings or hearings, so long as the final action
taken considers the cumulative effect of all proposed amendments to the plan.

39



Additions of new elements as the result of a City-initiated planning program may occur at 
any time during the calendar year, provided the element is consistent with the general framework 
of the comprehensive plan.  

Section 72. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.56.070 – Who may propose an 
amendment, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

A proposed amendment to the comprehensive plan, zoning map, or development regulations 
may be submitted by any individual, organization, corporation or partnership, general or special 
purpose government, or entity of any kind. 

Section 73. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.56.080 – When to propose and 
amendment, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments shall be considered once a year unless it is considered 
an emergency amendment. Although amendment proposals will be accepted at any time during 
the year, August 1st through September 15th of each year shall be the designated time frame to 
officially accept proposed comprehensive plan amendments. Proposed amendments received after 
September 15th will not be considered in that year's amendment process. 

Section 74. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.56.090 – Proposals for amendments, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

When an individual, organization, or other entity proposes an amendment to the 
comprehensive plan, the zoning map, or development regulations, the following must be submitted 
for an application to be deemed complete: 

(1) An appropriate City application form;
(2) A written description of the amendment being requested;
(3) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request;
(4) A written response to the approval criteria in MLMC 17.56.100 – Criteria for

Evaluation of Plan Amendments;
(5) A SEPA Checklist; and
(6) The applicable fee.

Section 75. Amendment. MLMC Section 17.56.110 – Procedure for comprehensive
plan amendments, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments are processed through a Type IV Review. The Type IV 
Review process is found in MLMC 19.270.050 – Type IV Reviews. 

Section 76. Amendment. Section 17.56.120 – Amendment transmittal and reporting to 
state, is hereby removed from the MLMC. 

Section 77. Amendment. Section 17.56.130 – Appeals to an amendment of the 
comprehensive plan, is hereby removed from the MLMC. 

Section 78. Amendment. MLMC Section 18.05.030 - Manufactured home community-
Site development plan, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

For a Preliminary Manufactured Home Community application to be deemed complete, 
the following must be submitted: 

40



(1) An appropriate City application form;
(2) A written description of the proposal;
(3) A preliminary plat depicting, at a minimum, lot lines, easements, rights-of-way, and

topographic features;
(4) A traffic generation letter;
(5) Any studies, reports, or documentation to support the request;
(6) A written response to the approval criteria of MLMC Chapter 18.15 – Design and

Location Standards and Chapter 18.20 – Construction Standards;
(7) A SEPA Checklist unless the proposal is exempt from SEPA; and
(8) The applicable fee.
Section 79. Amendment. MLMC Section 18.05.040 – Development permits, is hereby

amended to read as follows: 
Preliminary Manufactured Home Communities are processed through a Type I Review 

with the Planning Official making the final decision. The Type I Review process is found in 
MLMC Section 19.270.020 – Type I Reviews. 

Final Manufactured Home Communities are processed through a Final Plat Review with 
the Planning Official making the final decision. The Final Plat Review process is found in MLMC 
Section 19.270.060 – Final Plat Reviews. 

Section 80. Amendment. Section 18.05.090 – Time limitations, is hereby removed from 
the MLMC. 

Section 81. Amendment. Section 18.05.100 – Appeal, is hereby removed from the 
MLMC. 

Section 82. Amendment. There is hereby added to the MLMC, Title 19 – Land Use and 
Development, as follows: 

19.100 Administration 

Chapter 19.110 – Purpose 
The purpose of this Title is to provide a vehicle to implement the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and 
by reference, the requirements of the Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA). 

Chapter 19.120 – Authority 
This Title is established pursuant to Section 11, Article XI of the Constitution of the State of 
Washington, RCW Chapters 35.63, 35A.63, 36.70A, 36.70B, and 36.70C. 

Chapter 19.130 – Severability 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Title is for any reason held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Title. The City Council of the City of Medical Lake hereby declares that should 
any section, paragraph, sentence, or word of this Title be declared for any reason to be void or 
unconstitutional, on its face or as applied, it is hereby provided that all other parts of the same 
which are not expressly held to be void or unconstitutional shall continue in full force and effect. 

41



Chapter 19.135 – Interpretation 
It is the duty of the Planning Official to interpret Titles 15 through 19. Any person or entity may 
appeal an interpretation of the Planning Official by submitting a petition to the City of Medical 
Lake (City) and paying the appropriate fee. Appeals are heard by the Hearing Examiner and the 
process is found in Medical Lake Municipal Code (MLMC) 19.270.080 – Appeals. 

Chapter 19.140 – Zoning Map Administration 
Chapter Reserved 

Chapter 19.150 – Violations and Enforcement 
A. Violations. It is unlawful to violate any provisions of this Title, a land use decision, or 

conditions of a land use approval. This applies to any person or entity undertaking a 
development or land division, to the proprietor of a use or development, or to the owner of 
the land underlying the development or land division. For the ease of reference in this Title, 
all of these persons or entities are referred to by the term "operator."  

B. Notice of violations. The City must give written notice of any violation of this Title, land 
use decision, or conditions of land use approval to the operator, provided failure of the 
operator to receive the notice of violation does not invalidate any enforcement action(s) 
that may be taken by the City. 

Chapter 19.160 – Use Classifications 
Chapter Reserved 

Chapter 19.170 – Measurements 
Chapter Reserved 

Chapter 19.180 – Fees 
Chapter Reserved 

19.200 – Land Use Reviews 

Chapter 19.210 – Purpose 
The purpose of this chapter is to establish standardized decision-making procedures for reviewing 
development applications within the City enabling the City, the applicant, and all interested parties 
to reasonably review applications, and participate in the local decision-making process in a timely 
and effective manner. This chapter is intended to: 

A. Assure prompt review of development applications through the application of clear and 
specific standards; 

B. Provide for public review and comment on development applications that may have an 
impact on the community; and 

C. Establish procedures to ensure that the development application, if approved, is consistent 
with applicable standards. 

Chapter 19.220 – Vesting 
Land use review applications shall be considered under this chapter and the zoning, development 
and other land use control ordinances contained in the MLMC, and any uncodified ordinances 
modifying the same, in effect on the date a fully complete application is filed with the city. For the 
purposes of this section, a vested application shall mean that the applicant is entitled to implement 

42



the development proposal described in the application, under the zoning, development and land 
use ordinances applied by the City in its review of the application without being subject to changes 
in development regulations subsequent to the submittal date except to the extent allowed by the 
City’s police power to protect the public health, safety, and welfare. 
Once an application is approved and if the approval contains a detailed description of the uses, 
including a detailed site plan drawn to scale, specifying the location of all buildings and 
improvements to be constructed in conjunction with the use(s), and such site plan is consistent 
with all laws and regulations in effect at the time the original application vested, then all land use 
applications in connection with the approved use(s) and/or site plan are vested to the laws and 
regulations in effect at the time of the vesting of the original permit application, until the land use 
approval expires. 
Unless expressly authorized elsewhere in this Title, vested rights shall apply only to development 
regulations and shall not be applied to development review fees or impact fees. 

Chapter 19.230 – Pre-Application Conference 
An applicant may request a pre-application conference. The purpose of such conference is: 

A. To acquaint City and other agency staff with a sufficient level of detail about the proposed 
development to enable staff to advise the applicant of applicable approvals and 
requirements; and 

B. To acquaint the applicant with the applicable requirements of the Medical Lake Municipal 
Code and other laws and to identify issues and concerns in advance of a formal application 
to save the applicant time and expense through the process. However, the conference is not 
intended to provide an exhaustive review of all potential issues with a proposed 
development and does not prevent the City from applying all relevant laws to an 
application. A pre-application conference does not alter or change the requirements of the 
MLMC or any applicable law(s) to a proposed development. 

Chapter 19.240 – State Environmental Protection Act (SEPA) 
All land use reviews are subject to the State Environmental Protection Act (SEPA) as presented in 
MLMC Chapter 16.10 – SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures, and as required by law. 

Chapter 19.250 – Infrastructure Concurrency 
All land use reviews are subject to the concurrency requirements found in MLMC Chapter 16.02 
– Concurrency Management. 

Chapter 19.260 – Consolidated Applications 
When the City must review more than one application for a given development, all applications 
required for the development pursuant to this chapter may be submitted for review at one time. 
When more than one application is submitted for a given development, and those applications are 
subject to different types of review, then all of the applications are subject to the highest type of 
review that applies to any of the applications; provided that each development application shall 
only be subject to the relevant criteria applicable to that particular development application. For 
example, a development proposal that includes a Type II application and a Type III application, 
shall be wholly subject to the review procedures applicable to a Type III application, but the Type 
II portion of the development proposal shall be decided according to the relevant approval criteria 
applicable to the Type II application. 

43



Chapter 19.270 – Review Types 

Section 19.270.010 – General 
All land use review applications shall be decided by using one of the following review types. The 
review type assigned to each action governs the decision-making process for that application, 
except to the extent otherwise required by applicable state or federal law. 

Section 19.270.020 – Type I Reviews 
Type I procedures apply to administrative reviews that have non-discretionary criteria. Type I 
applications are decided by the City Planning Official without public notice prior to a decision and 
without a public hearing. If any party with standing appeals a Planning Official’s Type I decision, 
the appeal of such decision will be heard by the City’s Hearing Examiner. Any further appeal shall 
be to the superior court pursuant to applicable law. 
Process: 

A. Timeline. A final decision should be made within sixty-five (65) days from the date the
application was deemed complete, or if unable to satisfy such time period, a written notice
should be provided to the applicant specifying the reasons for the additional time to render
a decision and an estimated date of issuance.

B. Application. The applicant must submit: 1) an application on a City form, 2) a site plan or
plat, 3) the specific information required for the review requested, and 4) the applicable
fee.

C. Environmental checklist. A completed environmental checklist as specified in MLMC
Chapter 16.10 – SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures, may be required with a land
use application.

D. Completeness check. Upon receipt of an application, it shall be routed to other City
departments for a determination of completeness under RCW 36.70B.070. Within twenty-
eight (28) calendar days the City shall provide written notice that: (1) the application is
complete, or (2) additional information is required. Once the applicant supplies the
additional information, the Planning Official has fourteen (14) calendar days to determine
if the application is complete or request further information. If the requested information
is not received within sixty (60) calendar days of notice of an incomplete application, the
application will be considered abandoned and the City will not refund the application fee.
The determination of completeness shall not preclude the City from requesting additional
information or studies either at the time of the notice of completeness or subsequently if
new information is required or substantial changes in the proposed action occur.

E. Additional governmental authority. The Planning Official must notify the applicant of any
other governmental authority that may have jurisdiction over some aspect of the proposed
project within twenty-eight (28) days of submittal.

F. SEPA threshold determination. The Planning Official will issue a SEPA threshold
determination prior to notice of application. If the City issues a determination of
significance, the process in MLMC Chapter 16.10 shall apply.

G. Department responses. City department directors notified of the application must provide
a written response to the Planning Official within fourteen (14) days of the notice of
application.

H. Concurrency determination. The City Public Works Director will issue a transportation
facility concurrency determination within fourteen (14) days of the notice of application.

I. Review. The Planning Official must provide a single report stating the approval criteria,
findings, and decision to the applicant.

J. Notice of Decision. The Planning Official will mail the decision (pending appeal) to the
applicant.

K. Ability to appeal. The appeal process is set forth in MLMC Chapter 19.290 – Appeals.

44



L. Recording. All decisions of approval, including conditions, shall be recorded with Spokane
County. The applicant is responsible for recording the decision against the property and
must provide a copy of the recorded decision to the Planning Official. The decision must
be recorded before the approved use is permitted or any permits are issued, but no later
than thirty (30) days from the date of the final decision.

M. Effective date. The effective date for all reviews is the date the notice of decision was
issued.

Section 19.270.030 – Type II Reviews 
Type II reviews apply to quasi-judicial reviews that contain some discretionary criteria. Type II 
applications are decided by the Planning Official with public notice and an opportunity for 
comment. If any party with standing appeals a Planning Official’s Type II decision, the appeal of 
such decision will be heard by the City Hearing’s Examiner. Any further appeal shall be to the 
superior court pursuant to applicable law. 
Process: 

A. Timeline. A final decision should be made within one hundred (100) days from the date the
application was deemed complete, or if unable to satisfy such time period, a written notice
should be provided to the applicant specifying the reasons for the additional time to render
a decision and an estimated date of issuance.

B. Application. The applicant must submit: 1) an application on a City form, 2) a written
response to the approval criteria, 3) a site plan or plat, 4) a trip generation letter or traffic
analysis, if required by the Public Works Director, 5) the specific information required for
the review requested, and 6) the applicable fee.

C. Environmental checklist. A completed environmental checklist as specified in MLMC
Chapter 16.10 – SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures, may be required with a land
use application.

D. Completeness check. Upon receipt of an application, it shall be routed to other City
departments as for a determination of completeness under RCW 36.70B.070. Within
twenty-eight (28) calendar days the City shall provide written notice that: (1) the
application is complete, or (2) additional information is required. Once the applicant
supplies the additional information, the Planning Official has fourteen (14) calendar days
to determine if the application is complete or request further information. If the requested
information is not received within sixty (60) calendar days of notice of an incomplete
application, the application will be considered abandoned and the City will not refund the
application fee. The determination of completeness shall not preclude the City from
requesting additional information or studies either at the time of the notice of completeness
or subsequently if new information is required or substantial changes in the proposed action
occur.

E. Additional governmental authority. The Planning Official must notify the applicant of any
other governmental authority that may have jurisdiction over some aspect of the proposed
project within twenty-eight (28) days of submittal.

F. Notice of application. Following the determination of completeness, the City shall, within
fourteen (14) days provide the applicant, City departments, and other agencies with the
notice of application. Once the applicant receives the notice of application, the applicant
shall within fourteen (14) days of receipt notify the public of the proposal the via U.S. Mail
as specified in MLMC Chapter 19.280 – Notice of Application.

G. Public comment period. The public may provide written comments on the notice of
application for a period of no fewer than fourteen (14) days but no greater than thirty (30)
days, as specified in the notice of application.

H. Department responses. City department directors notified of the application must provide
a written response to the Planning Official within fourteen (14) days of the notice of
application.

45



I. Concurrency determination. The Public Works Director will issue a transportation facility
concurrency determination no more than fourteen (14) days after receiving the notice of
application.

J. SEPA threshold determination. The Planning Official will issue a SEPA threshold
determination prior to notice of application. If the City issues a determination of
significance, the process in MLMC Chapter 16.10 shall apply.

K. Review. The Planning Official must provide a single report stating the approval criteria,
findings, and decision to the applicant.

L. Notice of decision. The Planning Official will mail the notice of decision (pending appeal)
to the applicant, the property owner, and all recognized organizations or persons who
responded in writing to the public notice or requested a notice of decision.

M. Ability to appeal. The appeal process is set forth in MLMC Chapter 19.290 – Appeals.
N. Recording. All decisions of approval, including conditions, shall be recorded with Spokane

County. The applicant is responsible for recording the decision against the property and
must provide a copy of the recorded decision to the Planning Official. The decision must
be recorded before the approved use is permitted or any permits are issued, but no later
than thirty (30) days from the date of the final decision.

O. Effective date. The effective date for all reviews is the date the notice of decision was
issued.

P. Expiration. Land use decisions expire five (5) years after the decision date.

Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews 
Type III reviews apply to quasi-judicial permits and actions that predominantly contain 
discretionary approval criteria. Type III applications are decided by the City Hearing’s Examiner, 
Planning Commission, or the City Council depending on the application. If any party with standing 
appeals a Hearing Examiner or Planning Commission Type III decision, the appeal of such 
decision will be heard by City Council.  If any party with standing appeals the City Council’s Type 
III decision, such appeal shall be to the superior court, pursuant to applicable law. Decisions 
relating to the Shoreline Master Program may be subsequently appealed to the State Shoreline 
Hearings Board, pursuant to applicable law. 
Process: 

A. Timeline. A final decision should be made within one hundred seventy (170) days from the
date the application was deemed complete, or if unable to satisfy such time period, a written
notice should be provided to the applicant specifying the reasons for the additional time to
render a decision and an estimated date of issuance.

B. Application. The applicant must submit: 1) an application on a City form, 2) a written
response to the approval criteria, 3) a site plan or plat, 4) a trip generation letter or traffic
analysis, if required by the Public Works Director, 5) the specific information required for
the review requested, and 6) the applicable fee.

C. Environmental checklist. A completed environmental checklist as specified in MLMC
Chapter 16.10 – SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures, may be required with a land
use application.

D. Completeness check. Upon receipt of an application, it shall be routed to other City
departments for a determination of completeness under RCW 36.70B.070. Within twenty-
eight (28) calendar days the City shall provide written notice that: (1) the application is
complete, or (2) additional information is required. Once the applicant supplies the
additional information, the Planning Official has fourteen (14) calendar days to determine
if the application is complete or request further information. If the requested information
is not received within sixty (60) calendar days of notice of an incomplete application, the
application will be considered abandoned and the City will not refund the application fee.
The determination of completeness shall not preclude the City from requesting additional
information or studies either at the time of the notice of completeness or subsequently if
new information is required or substantial changes in the proposed action occur.

46



E. Additional governmental authority. The Planning Official must notify the applicant of any 
other governmental authority that may have jurisdiction over some aspect of the proposed 
project within twenty-eight (28) days of submittal. 

F. Notice of application. Following the determination of completeness, the City shall within 
fourteen (14) days, provide the applicant, City departments, and other agencies with the 
notice of application. Once the applicant receives the notice of application, the applicant 
shall within fourteen (14) days of receipt and fifteen (15) days prior to the public hearing, 
notify the public of the proposal in accordance with the methods contained in MLMC 
Chapter 19.280 – Notice of Application. 

G. Public comment period. The public may provide written comment for a period of no fewer 
than fourteen (14) days but no greater than thirty (30) days as specified in the public notice, 
provided public comment may be accepted prior to closing the record where there is an 
open record hearing, or the decision is issued. 

H. Department responses. City department directors notified of the application must provide 
a written response to the Planning Official within fourteen (14) days of the notice of 
application. 

I. Concurrency determination. The City’s Public Works Director will issue a concurrency 
determination no more than fourteen (14) days after receiving the notice of application. 

J. SEPA threshold determination. The Planning Official will issue a SEPA threshold 
determination no fewer than fifteen (15) days prior to a hearing in accordance with MLMC 
Chapter 16.10 -SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures. If the City issues a 
determination of significance, the process in MLMC Chapter 16.10 shall apply. 

K. Review. The Planning Official must provide a single report stating the approval criteria, 
findings, and a recommendation to the reviewing body prior to the hearing. 

L. Hearing. An open record hearing will be conducted by the assigned reviewing body. The 
reviewing body may adopt the Planning Official's report and recommendation, or modify 
or reject it, based on information presented at the hearing and in the record. 

M. Hearing Examiner decision. For those matters where the City’s Hearing Examiner is the 
final decision-making authority, the Hearing Examiner shall issue a written decision to be 
distributed to the parties of record. 

N. Planning Commission recommendation. For those matters where the Planning 
Commission is the initial reviewing body, the Planning Commission shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council. 

O. City Council. For those reviews where the City’s Hearing Examiner or Planning 
Commission has made a recommendation to the City Council, the Planning Official shall 
present the recommendation to the Council and request action be taken on such 
recommendation, which shall be done as soon as reasonably possible. 

P. Notice of decision. Within seven (7) days of the issued decision the Planning Official will 
mail the notice of the reviewing body's decision (pending appeal) to the applicant, the 
property owner, and all recognized organizations or persons who responded in writing to 
the public notice, testified at the hearing, or requested a notice of decision.  

Q. Ability to appeal. The appeal process is set forth in MLMC Chapter 19.290 – Appeals. 
R. Recording. All decisions of approval, including conditions, shall be recorded with Spokane 

County. The applicant is responsible for recording the decision against the property and 
must provide a copy of the recorded decision to the Planning Official. The decision must 
be recorded before the approved use is permitted or any permits are issued, but no later 
than thirty (30) days from the date of the final decision. 

S. Effective date. The effective date for all reviews is the date the notice of decision was 
issued.  

T. Expiration. Land use decisions expire five (5) years after the decision date. One-year 
extensions for preliminary plats may be granted by the Planning Commission upon 
showing that the applicant has attempted in good faith to submit the final plat within five 
(5) years. 

47



Section 19.270.050 – Type IV Reviews 
Type IV reviews apply to legislative matters. Legislative matters involve the creation, revision or 
large-scale implementation of public policy. Type IV applications are considered initially by the 
Planning Commission with final decisions made by the City Council. If any party with standing 
appeals the City Council’s Type IV decision, such appeal shall be to the Growth Management 
Hearings Board, pursuant to applicable law and regulations. 
Process: 

A. Initiation. Proposed amendments may be initiated by the following parties: 
1. City Council. 
2. Planning Commission. 
3. Planning Official. 
4. Any individual, organization. corporation or partnership, general or special purpose 

government, or entity of any kind. 
B. Application. The applicant must submit: 1) an application on a City form, 2) the amendment 

being requested, 3) a written response to the approval criteria, 4) a site plan or plat, and 5) 
the applicable fee. 

C. Environmental checklist. A completed environmental checklist as specified in MLMC 
Chapter 16.10 – SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures, may be required with a land 
use application. 

D. Concurrency determination. The City’s Public Works Director will issue a transportation 
facility concurrency determination no more than fourteen (14) days after receiving the 
notice of application.  

E. SEPA threshold determination. The Planning Official will issue a SEPA threshold 
determination no fewer than fifteen (15) days prior to a hearing in accordance with MLMC 
Chapter 16.10 -SEPA Environmental Policies and Procedures. If the City issues a 
determination of significance, the process in MLMC Chapter 16.10 shall apply. 

F. Intent to adopt. The City shall give notice of the intent to adopt amendments to the 
comprehensive plan, zoning map, or development regulations to the Washington State 
Department of Commerce sixty (60) days prior to the anticipated City Council action on 
the recommendations of Planning Commission. 

G. Public notice. A notice must be published in a newspaper of general circulation delivered 
in the City of Medical Lake at least fourteen (14) days prior to a public hearing. 

H. Public comment period. The public may provide written comment for a period of no fewer 
than fourteen (14) days but no greater than thirty (30) days, as specified in the public notice. 

I. Review. The Planning Official must provide a single report stating the approval criteria, 
findings and a recommendation to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

J. Hearing. An open record hearing will be conducted by the Planning Commission. The 
Planning Commission may adopt the Planning Official's report and recommendation, or 
modify or reject it, based on information presented at the hearing and in the record. 

K. Final decision authority. The Planning Official shall present the recommendation to the 
City Council and request action be taken on the recommendation.  

L. Ability to appeal. The decision of the City Council may be appealed to the Growth 
Management Hearings Board, pursuant to applicable law. 

Section 19.270.060 – Final Plat Reviews 
The final plat process provides the City an opportunity to confirm that the final plat conforms to 
the conditions of the preliminary approval. Final plat reviews include final binding site plans, final 
long plats, and final short plats. 
Process: 

A. Timeline. The final plat must be approved, disapproved or returned to the applicant within 
thirty (30) days from the date of application.  

48



B. Application. The applicant must submit: 1) an application on the appropriate City form, 2)
the final plat, 3) the certification of completed improvements or performance bond, and 4)
the applicable fee.

C. Review. The application will be reviewed by the Planning Official, the City Engineer, and
any other appropriate official for conformance with the terms of preliminary approval. If
the applicant has not shown conformance with the preliminary approval, the original copy
of the plat, together with a list of required modifications, shall be returned to the applicant.
A duplicate copy shall be retained by the City.

D. Approval. When all reviewers have confirmed that the final plat is ready to be approved,
the Planning Official shall inform the applicant. The applicant shall submit a vellum copy
of the plat for recording purposes. In addition, the applicant shall submit:

1. A certificate from the county treasurer indicating that all taxes and assessments on
said property included in the final plat, subdivision, or dedication have been paid
according to the provisions of RCW 58.17.160, RCW Chapter 58.08.030 and
58.08.040 , as thereafter amended.

2. A check payable to the county auditor for the full amount of filing fees according
to the provisions of RCW Chapter 36.18.010, as thereafter amended.

3. A title report no older than thirty (30) days, confirming that the title of the land as
described and shown on the plat is in the name of the owner(s) signing the
certificate or instrument of dedication.

4. The certificate required by RCW 58.17.165, or thereafter amended, the dedication
of streets and other areas, and protective covenants, if any.

E. Signatures. Upon receipt of the vellum copy of the plat, the plat shall be routed to all
appropriate City directors, officials, and engineer for signatures.

F. City Council meeting. Upon receipt of the vellum copy of the plat, a public meeting date
shall be set for the next regular City Council meeting, not less than seven (7) days from the
submittal date. However, short plats (four lots or less) are approved by the Planning Official
and do not require City Council approval.

G. Final approval. When the City Council or Planning Official finds that the land division
proposed for final plat approval conforms to all terms of the preliminary plat approval, and
that said land division meets the requirements of applicable state law, City ordinances and
other standards, which were in effect at the time of application for preliminary plat
approval, it shall approve the final plat, upon adoption of findings of fact.

H. Recording. After approval, the final plat shall be filed for record by the applicant with the
county auditor within thirty (30) days of approval. The City may refuse to issue permits for
development on a final plat which has not been reviewed and recorded by the county
auditor.

I. Ability to appeal. The appeal process is set forth in MLMC Chapter 19.290 – Appeals.
J. Vesting. Any lots in a final plat filed for record shall be a valid land use notwithstanding

any change in zoning laws for a period of five (5) years from the date of recording. A
subdivision shall be governed by the terms of approval of the final plat, and statutes, codes,
and regulations in effect at the time of approval under RCW 58.17.150 (1) and (3) for a
period of five (5) years after final plat approval unless the City Council finds that a change
in conditions creates a serious threat to the public health or safety in the subdivision.

Chapter 19.280 – Notice of Application 
A notice of application provides the applicant, public, City departments, and agencies with 
jurisdiction information about the proposal or project. The notice of application may be combined 
with the (SEPA) threshold determination. 
At least fifteen (15) days prior to a required public hearing, the applicant must notify the public of 
the proposal. The following three (3) methods of notification are prerequisites for a public hearing. 
The notifications are the responsibility of the applicant; however, the Planning Official shall 
provide guidance for completing the notifications. 

49



Methods of Notification: 
A. U.S. Mail. The applicant must mail a notice to all owners and taxpayers of record, as shown 

by the most recent Spokane County assessor's record, and occupants of addresses of 
property located within 300 lineal feet of the subject lot(s) and those agencies that may 
have jurisdiction. 

B. Newspaper. The applicant must publish a notice in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the general area where the proposal is located.  

C. On site. The applicant must post one (1) notice on the site for every 300 feet of street 
frontage. 

Chapter 19.290 – Appeals 
A. Appeal submittal. Any party with standing under MLMC Chapter 19.290(B) -Standing to 

appeal, may submit a written appeal of any Type I, II, or III  decision to the Planning 
Official containing the following items listed below. The appeal must be received no later 
than fourteen (14) calendar days after written notice of the decision is mailed. Receipt of a 
complete appeal submittal shall stay the original decision until a final decision on the 
appeal is reached. 

1. The case number designated by the City and the name of the applicant; 
2. The name and signature of each petitioner or their authorized representative and a 

statement showing that each petitioner has standing to file the appeal under this 
chapter. If multiple parties file a single petition for review, the petition shall 
designate one (1) party as the contact representative for all contact with the 
Planning Official. All contact with the Planning Official regarding the appeal, 
including notice, shall be with the contact representative; 

3. The specific aspect(s) of the decision or determination being appealed, and the 
specific reasons why each aspect is in error as a matter of fact or law; 

4. A statement demonstrating that the specific issues raised on appeal were raised 
during the period in which the record was open; and 

5. The appeal fee as adopted by the City Council. 
B. Standing to appeal. Any person aggrieved by a decision may appeal the decision. 
C. Appeal review bodies. 

1. Appeals of decisions made by City staff are reviewed by the Hearing Examiner. 
2. Appeals of decisions made by the Planning Commission or Hearing Examiner are 

reviewed by the City Council. 
3. Appeals of decisions made by City Council are reviewed by the Superior Court 

having jurisdiction over such appeal unless it was a Type IV decision, which is 
reviewed by the Growth Management Hearings Board. 

D. Appeal review process. 
1. All complete appeals submitted which are eligible as specified in this chapter shall 

be scheduled for review at a public hearing such that a final decision can be 
rendered within sixty (60) calendar days for closed-record appeals, and within 
ninety (90) calendar days for open-record appeals. Further extensions are permitted 
upon mutual agreement of the appellant, the applicant, and the Planning Official. If 
a final decision is not reached within the applicable time, the Planning Official shall 
notify the appellant and shall provide a reason for the delay and an estimated date 
of final decision issuance. 

2. Notice of the appeal hearing shall be mailed to the applicant and all parties who 
received a notice of application. 

3. Appeal hearings shall be closed if there was an open public hearing during the 
decision process. Otherwise, appeal hearings shall be open. 

a. An open-record appeal hearing before the City Hearing Examiner shall be 
conducted according to the procedures set forth in MLMC Chapter 2.80 – 
Hearing Examiner. 

50



b. A closed-record appeal hearing before the City Council shall be limited to
arguments from the appellant, the applicant and City staff, and
deliberation by the City Council. Argument and deliberation shall be
limited to the record established at the original open-record hearing. The
record shall consist of testimony and deliberation at the original hearing
as recorded by an audio/visual tape or transcript certified as accurate and
complete, any other materials submitted into the record, and the final
order being appealed.

c. Hearing rules shall otherwise be as specified by the reviewing body.
d. Notice of appeal decisions shall be mailed to the applicant and all parties

who received a notice of application.
E. Subsequent appeals.

1. Appeal decisions by any reviewing body may be subsequently appealed to the
Superior Court within twenty-one (21) calendar days after the date of decision,
pursuant to applicable law and as specified by Chapter 36.70C RCW.

2. Appeal decisions by the City Hearing Examiner or City Council on shoreline
substantial development permits, shoreline variance permits, and shoreline
conditional use permits may be subsequently appealed to the State Shoreline
Hearings Board, pursuant to applicable law.

51



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 1131 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, LEVYING 
THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, 

WASHINGTON IN SPOKANE COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING 
JANUARY 1, 2025 TO PROVIDE REVENUE FOR THE PROVISIONS OF CITY 

SERVICES AS SET FORTH IN THE CITY BUDGET 

WHEREAS, State law authorizes the City of Medical Lake (“City”) to levy regular 
property taxes upon the taxable property within the corporate limits in order to provide revenue 
for the 2025 current expense budget of the City;  

WHEREAS, the City Council, after a public hearing and after duly considering all relevant 
evidence and testimony presented, has determined that the City desires a 0% increase in property 
tax revenue from the previous year, while receiving increases resulting from the addition of new 
construction and improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the 
value of state assessed property, and any annexations that have occurred and refund made; and 

WHEREAS, the City has met and considered its budget for the calendar year 2025; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s actual levy amount from the previous year was $621,863.51; and 

WHEREAS, the population of the City is less than 10,000; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 84.52.020 requires the City Council on or before the 30th day of 
November to certify budget estimates to the Clerk of the Spokane County Board of Commissioners 
including amounts to be raised by taxing property in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council pursuant to notice has held a public hearing on the proposed 
budget estimates for 2025 on October 15, 2024, including revenue sources which will fund the 
provision of services; and  

WHEREAS, after due consideration of the proposed 2025 budget and the related financial 
requirements the City Council desires to impose an ad valorem property tax as permitted by State 
law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Medical Lake, Washington, do ordain 
as follows: 

Section 1.  Certification of Property Tax Levy. There shall be and is hereby levied 
and imposed upon real property, personal property, all new construction, utility property, and all 
property resulting from any annexations as defined in RCW Chapter 84.02 and 84.555.005 in 
the City of Medical Lake, Spokane County, Washington, a regular property tax increase over the 
2024 of $0.00 which is 0% for the year commencing January 1, 2025, plus any additional revenue 
resulting from new construction and improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, 
any increase in the value of state assessed property, and any annexations that have occurred and 
refund made.  The City of Medical Lake will bank this capacity in the event this increase is 
needed for subsequent years. 

52



The regular property tax levied through this Ordinance is for the purpose of receiving 
revenue to make payment upon the general indebtedness of the City of Medical Lake, the general 
fund obligations and for the payment of services performed by or for the City during the 2025 
calendar year. 

Section 2. Notice to Spokane County. Pursuant to RCW 84.52.020, the City Clerk 
shall certify to the County Legislative Authority a true and correct copy of this Ordinance, as 
well as, the budget estimates adopted by the City Council in order to provide for and direct that 
the taxes levied herein shall be collected and paid to the City of Medical Lake at the time and in 
the manner provided by the laws of the State of Washington. 

Section 3.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance 
should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance. 

PASSED by the City Council this _19th__ day of November 2024. 

Mayor, Terri Cooper 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 

Date of Publication: 

Effective Date:   

53



City Medical Lake 
124 S. Lefevre Street 

Medical Lake, WA 99022 
509-565-5000

NOTICE OF ORDINANCE PASSED BY MEDICAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL 

The following is the title and summary of Ordinance No. 1131 passed by the City of Medical Lake 
City Council on the 19th day of November 2024. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, LEVYING 
THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, 

WASHINGTON IN SPOKANE COUNTY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING 
JANUARY 1, 2025 TO PROVIDE REVENUE FOR THE PROVISIONS OF CITY 

SERVICES AS SET FORTH IN THE CITY BUDGET 

Section 1.  The Council hereby authorizes no increase in the regular property tax levy 
amount to be collected in the 2025 tax year. This is exclusive of additional revenue resulting 
from new construction, improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase 
in the value of state assessed property, any annexations that have occurred and refund made. 

Section 2.  Provides that the City Clerk shall certify and provide notice to Spokane 
County of Ordinance No. 1131 and the City of Medical Lake property taxes to be levied. 

Section 3.  Establishes a severability clause in the event some portion of the Ordinance 
is held invalid. 

The full text of the Ordinance is available at the City of Medical Lake offices as identified 
above.  A copy will be mailed to any citizen without cost upon request from the City’s Clerk’s 
office. 

______________________________________ 
Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 

Published: ____________________________ 

54



CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE 
SPOKANE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 1119 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, RELATING 
TO SPECIAL EVENTS AND REPEALING AND AMENDING CHAPTER 4.30 SPECIAL 

EVENTS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES THERETO 

WHEREAS, the City of Medical Lake Municipal Code (“MLMC”), Chapter 4.30, contains 
the Special Events and Policies and Procedures (“SEPP”) for the City of Medical Lake (“City”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Staff has reviewed the SEPP and determined that revisions and 
amendments to MLMC, Chapter 4.30, are necessary to address current and future needs of the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Staff has prepared such revisions and amendments to MLMC, 
Chapter 4.30, for the City Council’s review and consideration; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council concurs in the necessary revisions and amendments to the 
SEPP, including repealing the entirety of MLMC, Chapter 4.30, and replacing said chapter with 
the policies and procedures set forth in the attached Exhibit A, 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Medical Lake, Washington does 
ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Amendment/Adoption.  MLMC, Chapter 4.30, is hereby amended and repealed as 
contained herein and a new Chapter 4.30 is adopted as set forth in the attached Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein. 

Section 2. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 

Section 3. Repealer.  Upon the Effective Date of this Ordinance, MLMC, Chapter 4.30, 
Special Events Policies and Procedures shall be repealed in its entirety, with no further force or 
effect of law, and replaced with the newly created Chapter 4.30, as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
publication of this Ordinance or a summary thereof in the official newspaper of the City as 
provided by law. 

55



PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of November, 2024. 

Mayor, Terri Cooper 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz 

Date of Publication: 

Effective Date:   

56



City Medical Lake 
124 S. Lefevre Street 

Medical Lake, WA 99022 
509-565-5000

NOTICE OF ORDINANCE PASSED BY MEDICAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL 

The following is the title and summary of Ordinance No. 1119 passed by the City of Medical Lake 
City Council on the ____ day of November, 2024. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MEDICAL LAKE, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO 
SPECIAL EVENTS AND REPEALING AND AMENDING CHAPTER 4.30 SPECIAL 
EVENTS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES THERETO. 

The introductory paragraphs address the adoption of Ordinance 1119 and the creation of a new 
Chapter 4.30 under the City of Medical Lake Municipal Code. 

Section 1: Amends and adopts new policies and procedures for special events in the 
City of Medical Lake under the City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 4.30. 

Section 2. Establishes a severability clause in the event some portion of the Ordinance 
is held invalid. 

Section 3: Upon the effective date of the Ordinance, repeals the prior policies and 
procedures for special events under City of Medical Lake Municipal Code, Chapter 4.30. 

Section 4. Provides for an effective date of five (5) days after publication of the 
Ordinance. 

The full text of the Ordinance is available at the City of Medical Lake offices as identified 
above.  A copy will be mailed to any citizen without cost upon request from the City’s Clerk’s 
office. 

______________________________________ 
Koss Ronholt, Finance Director/City Clerk 

Published: ____________________________ 

57



CHAPTER 4.30 – SPECIAL EVENTS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

Sections: 
 
4.30.010 Purpose and Intent. 
4.30.020 Definitions. 
4.30.030 Administration. 
4.30.040 Permit—Required. 
4.30.050 Permit—Not Required. 
4.30.060 Permit—Application—Requirements. 
4.30.070 Permit—Application—Review. 
4.30.080 Permit—Denial. 
4.30.090 Conditions. 
4.30.100 Permit Issuance. 
4.30.110 Indemnification. 
4.30.120 Insurance Requirements. 
4.30.130 City Services and equipment use fees. 
4.30.140 Cleanup deposits. 
4.30.150 Revocation of permit. 
4.30.160 Duties of permittee/sponsor of event. 
4.30.170 Violation—Penalty. 
4.30.180 Severability. 
 
4.30.010 Purpose and Intent. 
 
Special events are of infrequent occurrence and temporary in nature and may be associated with 
promotions, holidays, festivals, or other kinds of celebrations.  Special events shall be allowed by 
a special event permit granted by the City of Medical Lake (City). 
 
It is the specific intent to place the obligation of complying with the requirements of this chapter 
upon the applicant or sponsor, and nothing contained in this chapter is intended to be construed to 
create or form the basis for liability on the part of the City, or its officers, employees, or agents for 
any injury or damage resulting from the failure of the applicant or sponsor to comply with the 
provisions stated herein. 
 
4.30.020 Definitions. 
 
“Applicant” means any person or organization who seeks a special event permit from the City of 
Medical Lake to conduct or sponsor an event governed by this chapter. An applicant must be 
eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
 
“Athletic event” means an occasion in which a group of persons collectively engage in a sport or 
form of physical exercise on a public street, sidewalk, alley or other public right-of-way, which 
obstructs, delays, or interferes with the normal flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, or does not 
comply with traffic laws and controls. Athletic events include bicycle and footraces, bike-a-thons, 
walk-a-thons, and volksmarches. 

58



“Block party” shall mean a festive gathering on a private property or a street for festivities 
including barbeques, picnics, music, games, or other neighborhood events. Street gatherings 
require the closure of a street, or a portion thereof, to vehicular traffic, for public safety purposes.  

“Motorcade” means any organized procession containing ten (10) or more vehicles, except funeral 
processions, upon a public street, sidewalk, alley or other public right-of-way. 

“Parade” means any march or procession consisting of people, animals, bicycles, vehicles or 
combination thereof, except funeral processions, on any public street, sidewalk, alley or other 
public right-of-way, which obstructs, delays or interferes with the normal flow of pedestrian or 
vehicular traffic, or does not comply with traffic laws or controls. 

“Special event” means any parade, block party, fair, show, festival, carnival, rally, party, filming 
of movie, video or television show, motorcade, run, street dance, bike-a-thon, race, walks, athletic 
event or other attended entertainment or celebration that is to be held in whole or in part upon 
publicly owned property and/or public right-of-way, or, if held wholly upon private property, will 
nevertheless affect or impact the ordinary and normal use by the general public of public property 
or public rights-of-way within the vicinity of the event. Special event shall also mean any activity 
to be held in whole or in part upon publicly owned or controlled property and/or public rights-of-
way where merchandise or services are offered for sale, whether by for profit or nonprofit 
organizations. 

“Special event permit” shall mean the permit issued by the City after the applicant has met all 
applicable reviews and requirements for a special event as set forth in this chapter. 

“Street dance” means any dance of six (6) or more people on or within any publicly owned parking 
lot or other publicly owned property, or any public street, alley, sidewalk or other public right-of-
way. 

4.30.030 Administration. 

The Mayor or designated appointee shall, after consultation with appropriate departments and 
agencies, have discretionary authority regarding special event permits.  The Mayor or designee 
may approve, modify, or condition an application for a special event permit. 

4.30.040 Permit—Required. 

A. Any person or organization desiring to conduct or sponsor a special event in the City shall
first obtain a special event permit. 

4.30.050 Permit—Not Required. 

Special event permits are not required for the following: 

59



A. Wedding processions or funeral processions on the streets; 
 

B. Parades involving a total of twenty-five (25) or fewer pedestrians marching along a parade 
route that is restricted to marching on sidewalks, and crossing streets only at pedestrian crosswalks 
in accordance with traffic regulations and controls; 
 

C. Groups of students involved in exercising as part of an organized school sports turnout; 
 

D. A special event sponsored in whole by the City of Medical Lake; or 
 
E. Gatherings of people of less than twenty-five (25) individuals in a City park. 
  

4.30.060 Permit—Application—Requirements. 
 

A. Filing of Application. Any person or organization desiring to sponsor a special event for a 
gathering of people of 25 or more individuals not exempted by this chapter shall apply for a special 
event permit by filing a completed application with the Parks and Recreation Director on a form 
supplied by the City. This application shall be filed not less than ninety (90) days in advance of 
the date on which the special event is to occur, if the special event requires the closure of any 
highway or street, any detouring traffic, or any significant impact on City services. Other special 
events not requiring the foregoing are to be filed not less than sixty (60) days in advance of the 
proposed special event. 

 
B. Waiver of Application Deadline. Upon showing of good cause or at the discretion of the 

Mayor, or designee, shall consider an application that is filed after the filing deadline if there is 
sufficient time to process and investigate the application and obtain law enforcement and other 
City services for the event. Good cause can be demonstrated by the applicant showing that the 
circumstance that gave rise to the permit application did not reasonably allow the participants to 
file within the time prescribed, and that the event is for the purpose of exercising the right of free 
speech. 
 

C. Information Requested on Application. In order that adequate arrangements may be made 
for the proper protection of the special event, the Mayor, or designee, shall have the authority to 
set the information required on the application. Such information shall include but not be limited 
to: 

 
1. The name of the applicant, the sponsoring organization, the special event chairperson, 

and the address and telephone number of each; 
 

2. The purpose of the special event, the date when it is proposed to be conducted, the 
location and the hours of operation, including site map or maps, schedule of events and 
location of events; and 

 
3. Such other information as the Mayor, or designee, may deem reasonably necessary. 

 

60



D. Application Filing Fee. The application for a special event permit shall be accompanied by
a filing fee in an amount set by the City Council fee schedule.

4.30.070 Permit—Application—Review. 

In reviewing the application for the purpose of determining whether the permit should be issued 
or denied, the Mayor, or designee, shall notify and seek consultation with other City of Medical 
Lake officials and shall make such review in conformance with the grounds set forth in this 
chapter. 

4.30.080 Permit—Denial. 

An application for a special event permit may be denied if it is determined from consideration of 
the application, or other pertinent information, that: 

A. Information contained in the application, or supplemental information requested from the
applicant, is found to be false or nonexistent in any material detail; or 

B. The applicant fails to complete the application form within 10 days after having been
notified of the additional information or documents required; or 

C. The applicant refuses to agree to abide or comply with all of the conditions and terms of
the permit; or 

D. It is found that the purpose of the special event is principally devoted to the advertising and
sale of a commercial product or service or for a private commercial process; or 

E. The time, route, hours, location, or size of the special event will unnecessarily disrupt the
movement of other traffic within the area; or 

F. The special event is of the size or nature that requires the diversion of so great a number of
law enforcement officers for the City to properly police the event, site and contiguous areas that 
allowing the special event would unreasonably deny law enforcement protection to the remainder 
of the City and its residents; or 

G. Another special event permit application has already been received, or has already been
approved, to hold another event at the same time and place requested by the applicant, or so close 
in time and place as to cause undue traffic congestion, or the City’s law enforcement officers and/or 
other City departments are unable to meet the needs for law enforcement and other City services 
for both events; or 

H. The location of the special event would cause undue hardship for adjacent businesses or
residents; or 

61



I. The location of the event will substantially interfere with any construction or maintenance 
work scheduled to take place upon or along public property or right-of-way, or a previously granted 
right-of-way disturbance permit; or 

 
J. The event shall occur at a time when a school is in session at a route or location adjacent 

to the school or class thereof, and the noise created by the activities of the event would substantially 
disrupt the education activities of the school or class; or 

 
K. The event would endanger public safety or health; or 

 
L. The event would seriously inconvenience the general public’s use of public property, 

services or facilities; or 
 

M. The applicant fails to comply with the liability insurance requirements, or the applicant’s 
insurance lapses or is cancelled; or 

 
N. The event would create or constitute a public nuisance; or 

 
O. The event would be likely to cause significant damage to public property or facilities; or 

 
P. The event would engage in or encourage participants to engage in illegal acts; or 

 
Q. The applicant’s failure to prepay any and all fees and expenses; or 

 
R. Other issues not in the public interest as identified by the Mayor, or designee. 

 
4.30.090 Conditions. 
 
The City may condition the issuance of a special event permit by imposing reasonable 
requirements concerning the time, place and manner of the event, and such requirements as are 
necessary to protect the safety of persons and property, and the control of traffic; provided such 
conditions shall not unreasonably restrict the right of free speech. Such restrictions may include 
but are not limited to: 
 

A. Alteration of the date, time, route or location of the special event proposed on the special 
event application; 
 

B. Elimination of an activity which cannot be mitigated to a point as to ensure public safety 
and welfare, or which causes undue liability to the City; 
 

C. Conditions concerning the area of assembly and disbanding of a parade or other events 
occurring along a route; 
 

D. Conditions concerning the accommodation of pedestrian or vehicular traffic, including 
restricting the special event to only a portion of a street or right-of-way transversed; 
 

62



E. Requirements for the use of traffic cones or barricades; 
 

F. Requirements for the use of City personnel and equipment; 
 

G. Requirements for the provision of first aid or sanitary facilities; 
 

H. Requirements for the use of event monitors to include parking and crowd management, 
and providing notice of permit conditions to special event participants; 

 
I. Requirements to provide notice to surrounding property owners; 

 
J. Restrictions on the number and type of vehicles, animals or structures at the special event, 

and inspection and approval of floats, structures and decorated vehicles for fire safety; 
 

K. Compliance with animal protection ordinances and laws; 
 

L. Requirement for the use of garbage containers, cleanup and restoration of City property; 
 

M. Restrictions on the use of amplified sound and compliance with noise ordinances, 
regulations and laws; 

 
N. Compliance with any relevant ordinance or law and obtaining any legally required permit 

or license; 
 

O. Any other restriction or requirement deemed necessary to ensure public safety and well-
being; or 

 
P. Restrictions on the sale and/or consumption of alcohol. 

 
4.30.100 Permit—Issuance. 
 
The permit may be issued when the application is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations, and the applicant has agreed in writing to comply with all the terms and conditions set 
forth therein. 
 
4.30.110 Indemnification Agreement. 
 
Prior to the issuance of a special event permit, the permit applicant and authorized officer of the 
sponsoring organization, if any, must sign an agreement to defend the City against, and indemnify 
and hold the City, its officers, employees and agents, where such claim arises in whole or in part 
out of the activities for which such permit is issued; except any claims arising solely out of the 
negligent acts or omissions of the City, its officers, employees and agents. 
 
4.30.120 Insurance requirements. 
 

63



A. Liability Coverage Required. The applicant/sponsor of a special event must possess or 
obtain public liability insurance to protect against loss from liability imposed by law for damages 
on account of bodily injury and property damage arising from the special event. A certificate of 
insurance shall be filed thirty (30) days prior to the special event with the Mayor, or designee, and 
shall name the City, its officials, employees and agents, as additional insured. Insurance coverage 
must be maintained for the duration of the special event and on an occurrence basis. 
 

B. Minimum Limits Defined. Coverage shall be a commercial general liability policy. 
Minimum limits required are one million dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence combined single 
limit bodily injury and property damage; two million dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate. If food 
or nonalcoholic beverages are sold or served at the special event, the policy must also include an 
endorsement for liquor liability. If the special event involves athletic or other types of active 
participants, the policy must include participant coverage. The Mayor, or designee, may require 
additional endorsements depending upon the proposed activity, including but not limited to, 
endorsements for all food and beverage vendors at any special event and certificates of insurance 
confirming such endorsements as required by this chapter.  Acceptability of insurance is also 
subject to approval by the City’s risk manager or provider. 
 

C. Waiver or Reduction of Required Limits. The Mayor, or designee, may waive or reduce the 
insurance requirements of this chapter under the following conditions: 

 
1. The applicant or an officer of the sponsoring organization signs a verified statement 

that the applicant believes the special event’s purpose is First Amendment expression, and that the 
cost of obtaining insurance is so financially burdensome that it would constitute an unreasonable 
burden on the right of First Amendment expression. The statement shall include the name and 
address of two (2) insurance agents or other source of insurance coverage contacted to determine 
insurance premium rates for insurance coverage. 
 

2. The applicant or an officer of the sponsoring organization signs a verified statement 
that insurance coverage in the limits required is impossible to obtain. The statement shall include 
the name and address of two (2) insurance agents or other source of insurance coverage contacted. 
 

3. The insurance limits are determined to be in excess of the reasonable risk presented 
by the proposed special event. 
 
4.30.130 City of Medical Lake services and equipment use fees. 
 

A. Prepayment of Fees. Upon approval of an application for a special event permit, the Mayor, 
or designee, shall provide the applicant with a statement of the estimated cost of providing City 
personnel and equipment. The applicant/sponsor of the special event shall be required to prepay 
these estimated costs for City services and equipment ten (10) days prior to the special event. City 
services and equipment may include the use of law enforcement officers and employees for traffic 
and crowd control, pick-up and delivery of traffic control devices, picnic tables, extraordinary 
street sweeping, and any other needed, requested or required City service and the cost of operating 
City equipment to provide such services. 
 

64



B. Refunds or Overruns. If the actual cost for City services and equipment on the date(s) of
the special event is less than the estimated cost, the applicant/sponsor will be refunded the 
difference by the City in a timely manner. If the actual cost for City services and equipment on the 
date(s) of the special event is greater than the estimated cost, the applicant/sponsor will be billed 
for the difference. There will be no refunds of fees due to cancellation of the event for any reason. 

C. Waiver of Fees. The fees for the use of City services and equipment, and prepayment, may
be waived in part or in full by the City if in review of the application the City finds that the special 
event is of sufficient community benefit to warrant the expenditure of City funds without 
reimbursement by the applicant/sponsor.  

The fees for City services and equipment may also be waived in part or in full by the City of 
Medical Lake if the applicant/sponsor signs a verified statement that the special event’s purpose 
is First Amendment expression, and that the cost of City services and equipment is so financially 
burdensome that it would constitute an unreasonable burden on the right of First Amendment 
expression. 

4.30.140 Cleanup deposits. 

A. Required for Certain Special Events. The applicant/sponsor of a special event involving
the sale of food or beverages for immediate consumption, erection of structures, horses or other 
large animals, water aid stations or another event likely to create a substantial need for cleanup 
may be required to provide a cleanup deposit prior to the issuance of a special event permit. The 
cleanup deposit shall be in an amount set by the City Council. 

B. Refunds and Overruns. The cleanup deposit shall be returned after the special event if the
area used for the permitted event has been cleaned and restored to the same condition as existed 
prior to the special event. 

If the property used for the special event has not been properly cleaned or restored, the 
applicant/sponsor shall be billed for the actual cost by the City for cleanup and restoration. The 
cleanup deposit shall be applied toward the payment of the bill. 

4.30.150 Revocation of permit. 

Any special event permit issued pursuant to this chapter may be summarily revoked by the Mayor, 
or designee, at any time when, by reason of disaster, public calamity, riot or other emergency, the 
Mayor, or designee, determines that the safety of the public or property requires such revocation. 
The Mayor, or designee, may also summarily revoke any permit issued pursuant to this chapter if 
the Mayor, or designee, finds that the special event permit has been issued based upon false 
information, when the permittee exceeds the scope of the special event permit, or the applicant 
fails to prepay any and all expenses. Notice of such action revoking a special event permit shall be 
delivered in writing to the permittee by personal service or certified mail at the address specified 
by the permittee in the applicant’s application. 

65



A special events permit issued pursuant to this chapter shall be temporary and shall vest no 
permanent rights in the applicant. 

4.30.160 Duties of permittee/sponsor of event. 

Each permittee/sponsor of an event shall: 

A. Comply with all the terms and conditions of the special event permit;

B. Ensure that the person leading a parade or other special event along a route, or the person
in charge of any other event, shall be informed of the permit conditions and shall carry a copy of 
the special event permit on his person for the duration of the event; 

C. Ensure that the area used for the permitted special event is cleaned and restored to the same
condition as existed prior to the special event, immediately following the completion of the special 
event. 

4.30.170 Violation—Penalty. 

A. Unlawful to Sponsor or Participate in an Event Without a Permit. It is unlawful for any
person to sponsor or conduct a special event requiring a special event permit pursuant to this 
chapter unless a valid permit has been issued for the special event. It is unlawful for any person to 
participate in such an event with the knowledge that the sponsor of the special event has not been 
issued a required, valid permit. 

B. Unlawful to Exceed Scope of Permit. The special event permit authorizes the
permittee/sponsor to conduct only such an event as is described in the permit, and in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of the special event permit. It is unlawful for the permittee/sponsor 
to willfully violate the terms and conditions of the special event permit, or for any special event 
participant with knowledge thereof to willfully violate the terms and conditions of the special event 
permit. 

C. Violation is a Civil Infraction. Any person or organization violating the provisions of this
chapter is guilty of a Civil Infraction punishable by a fine pursuant to Section 1.01.130. Each day 
or portion of a day in which a violation is committed constitutes a separate offense. 

4.30.180 Severability. 

If any part, provision, or section of this chapter is held to be void or unconstitutional by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, all other parts not expressly so held shall continue in full force and effect. 

66


	November 19, 2024 agenda only.pdf
	Briefing Sheet - Preliminary Budget.pdf
	Nov 5 2024 draft minutes.pdf
	Medical Lake Permit tree lighting App.pdf
	Resolution 24-718 (Comcast Contract-Library).pdf
	Resolution 24-720 - Holidays Personnel Policy Amendment(1).pdf
	Ordinance 1130 (SPB Edits) 11.14.24.pdf
	Chapter 19.110 – Purpose
	Chapter 19.120 – Authority
	Chapter 19.130 – Severability
	Chapter 19.140 – Zoning Map Administration
	Chapter 19.150 – Violations and Enforcement
	Chapter 19.160 – Use Classifications
	Chapter 19.170 – Measurements
	Chapter 19.180 – Fees
	Chapter 19.210 – Purpose
	Chapter 19.220 – Vesting
	Chapter 19.230 – Pre-Application Conference
	Chapter 19.240 – State Environmental Protection Act (SEPA)
	Chapter 19.250 – Infrastructure Concurrency
	Chapter 19.260 – Consolidated Applications
	Chapter 19.270 – Review Types
	Section 19.270.010 – General
	Section 19.270.020 – Type I Reviews
	Section 19.270.030 – Type II Reviews
	Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews
	Section 19.270.050 – Type IV Reviews
	Section 19.270.060 – Final Plat Reviews
	Chapter 19.280 – Notice of Application
	Chapter 19.290 – Appeals
	Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt
	City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz
	Date of Publication:
	Effective Date:

	Ordinance 1131 (Property Tax Levy 2025)(1)(clean).pdf
	Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt
	City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz
	Date of Publication:
	Effective Date:

	Ordinance No. 1119 Special Events(1)11.14.24.pdf
	Finance Director/City Clerk Koss Ronholt
	City Attorney, Sean P. Boutz
	Date of Publication:
	Effective Date:

	Ordinance 1130 Final 11.14.24.pdf
	Chapter 19.110 – Purpose
	Chapter 19.120 – Authority
	Chapter 19.130 – Severability
	Chapter 19.140 – Zoning Map Administration
	Chapter 19.150 – Violations and Enforcement
	Chapter 19.160 – Use Classifications
	Chapter 19.170 – Measurements
	Chapter 19.180 – Fees
	Chapter 19.210 – Purpose
	Chapter 19.220 – Vesting
	Chapter 19.230 – Pre-Application Conference
	Chapter 19.240 – State Environmental Protection Act (SEPA)
	Chapter 19.250 – Infrastructure Concurrency
	Chapter 19.260 – Consolidated Applications
	Chapter 19.270 – Review Types
	Section 19.270.010 – General
	Section 19.270.020 – Type I Reviews
	Section 19.270.030 – Type II Reviews
	Section 19.270.040 – Type III Reviews
	Section 19.270.050 – Type IV Reviews
	Section 19.270.060 – Final Plat Reviews
	Chapter 19.280 – Notice of Application
	Chapter 19.290 – Appeals


	Name of Event: Medical Lake Winter Festival
	Street Address: Coney Island Park
	City: Medical Lake
	County: Spokane
	Event Date: Dec. 14,2024
	Event Time: Approx. 5:00 
	AM: Off
	PM: On
	ApplicantsSponsors Name: Rocketman Pyros, LLC
	Phone No: 509-981-8298
	Pyrotechnic Operator: Daniel  VerHeul
	License No: 4183
	Experienced Assistants Name: Steve Underwood
	General Display Company Name: Rocketman Pyros, LLC
	Phone No_2: 509-981-8298
	Authority Having Jurisdiction: Spokane County Fire District 3
	Name of Permitting Official: Dustin Flock
	Title: Division Chief
	Phone No_3: 509-934-0040
	Permit Granted Yes: On
	Permit Granted Yes With Restrictions: Off
	Permit Granted No: Off
	RestrictionsNotations 1: 
	RestrictionsNotations 2: 
	RestrictionsNotations 3: 
	Date of Approval: 11/07/2024
	Permit Number: 


